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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: The meeting of

          3  the General Welfare Committee is called to order.

          4  Please either turn off your cell phones or put them

          5  on vibrate.

          6                 We have several matters that we're

          7  tending to today. Just so everyone is clear, we're

          8  going to spend the first few minutes of the hearing

          9  voting on an item previously heard before this

         10  Committee, Intro. 114-A, related to domestic

         11  partnerships. And after the vote, which will happen

         12  momentarily when two more of our colleagues next

         13  door finish their hearing in a matter of minutes, we

         14  will then proceed to the two bills related to

         15  "domestic violence."

         16                 Let me say at the outset that Council

         17  Member Lopez, who has been one of the strongest

         18  supporters in New York City for the rights of

         19  domestic partners, would like to say a statement.

         20                 She has a schedule conflict, so I'd

         21  like to make sure that she gets a chance to get her

         22  statement in up front.

         23                 Council Member Lopez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I want to thank

         25  the Chairman of this Committee for bringing such

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  important issues to the forefront as the rights of

          3  domestic violence victims, to have access to

          4  shelters.

          5                 And also, I want to congratulate the

          6  Chairman of this Committee for being so quick and so

          7  fast for making sure that the rights of all are

          8  equal in this City.

          9                 I wanted to ask for a few minutes to

         10  explain my situation in regard to these three bills,

         11  and I appreciate that from the part of the Chairman

         12  of the Committee.

         13                 In regard to the question of domestic

         14  partners, I want to make an exception, and I want to

         15  speak to you for one second about my personal

         16  situation.

         17                 I am an openly gay woman who is not

         18  allowed to live a life like everybody else with her

         19  domestic partner. That woman and I have been

         20  together 18 years of our life, and it's a

         21  relationship that I share.

         22                 This bill is going to guarantee in

         23  the City that other people that are like me in other

         24  states, when they move here will have the status

         25  that they decide to address in the particular state
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          2  to be recognized by us here.

          3                 Gay, lesbian, transgendered, bisexual

          4  people have the right to be treated like everybody

          5  else, and we only want equal rights.

          6                 As a legislator in this body, I feel

          7  that I have a conflict of interest when we're

          8  dealing with this issue. But, frankly, my friends, I

          9  don't care. I will vote for this bill and I will

         10  approve it, even when I feel I have a conflict of

         11  interest, because it's going to benefit me.

         12                 I want to thank the Committee for

         13  supporting this bill, and in closing I want to say

         14  that I've been very much in strong support of making

         15  sure that domestic violence victims are treated

         16  decently, equally, and not mistreated and abused one

         17  more time by the system of the City of New York, and

         18  I think that the bills that we're looking at today

         19  are going to help on that.

         20                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: You're welcome.

         22  As liberal as I am, I would say I do not believe

         23  that Council Member Lopez has a conflict of interest

         24  in voting for her own rights along with everyone

         25  else's.
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          2                 I want to thank you for your

          3  statement. And Council Member Lopez, also, again,

          4  who worked in the previous term when I dare say it

          5  was a little harder to move pieces of legislation

          6  like this, is was because of her groundbreaking work

          7  and some of her colleagues before us who really

          8  moved these issues that today we're able to vote on

          9  such an important piece of legislation. So, thank

         10  you again.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         12  Thank you, all of you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Before the

         14  actual vote on Intro. 114-A related to domestic

         15  partnerships, I just would like to say, I had the

         16  great honor of working literally almost ten years

         17  ago during the Dinkins Administration on a Task

         18  Force that sought to create an executive order

         19  related to domestic partnership, to institute full

         20  domestic partnership rights in New York City.

         21                 Later the Council codified these

         22  rights into law. Today we take another vital step. I

         23  believe this bill will pass out of Committee with

         24  flying colors, I believe it will be passed on the

         25  floor of the Council, and that is largely due also
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          2  to the strong support of Speaker Miller. And what

          3  we'll do today is take another step to ensure that

          4  the domestic partners, no matter where they come

          5  from, if they come to New York City and they have

          6  registered as domestic partners, or another state,

          7  or even in another country, that those rights will

          8  be automatically guaranteed and recognized in the

          9  same manner that we don't think twice about

         10  recognizing a marriage from another city, another

         11  state, another country, that the same should be true

         12  of domestic partners.

         13                 So, again, I think we're taking a

         14  fundamental step forward in civil rights and human

         15  rights.

         16                 I want to see if any other colleagues

         17  would like to speak to this bill for a moment before

         18  we vote. I'm just going to ask them to do so before

         19  the vote, in the interest of time, since we're still

         20  waiting for another member.

         21                 Council Member Gale Brewer.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman.

         24                 I just want to say that in the State

         25  of Vermont a friend of mine was an openly gay
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          2  legislator there, Harvard undergrad, Harvard lawyer,

          3  and he was one of the people who led the fight

          4  there. And his story in the State of Vermont, which

          5  was the first state to pass similar legislation,

          6  were quite special.

          7                 One of them was a story of a woman, a

          8  married woman with eight children, who was also a

          9  legislator, Catholic, and she I think was one of the

         10  deciding votes on the legislation. He's a very

         11  special man, very intelligent, very caring, very

         12  committed, and I think their relationship was one of

         13  those special relationships in the Legislature, and

         14  she normally would have voted against such a bill,

         15  but because she had a daughter who was a lesbian,

         16  and because she had such great regard for my friend,

         17  she was the deciding vote on that particular bill in

         18  the State of Vermont.

         19                 So, there are so many wonderful

         20  stories about histories like this. Unfortunately,

         21  there's a lot of bad history, in terms of the fact

         22  that this hasn't passed across the country. It

         23  should be law everywhere, there shouldn't even be an

         24  issue.

         25                 But when you hear stories like that,
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          2  you know how meaningful the work is of all the

          3  people who proceeded us, and, so, I certainly will

          4  vote for this law, but I wanted to tell you that

          5  there's so much that goes into this type of

          6  legislation.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: You're welcome.

          9  And, again, we're going to be waiting for a moment

         10  to get quorum, and I want to make sure that Council

         11  Member Quinn has a chance to speak before we take

         12  the vote because she has really been the architect

         13  of this bill.

         14                 Let me just see, while we're waiting

         15  for a moment, if either Council Member Yassky, who

         16  is an honorary member of our Committee, or Council

         17  Member Stewart would like to speak to the domestic

         18  partnership bill?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, Mr.

         20  Chairman, I am a guest here, but I want to say at

         21  the outset that I'm not a member of this Committee,

         22  but I am an admirer of it from afar. I think, I hope

         23  none of our colleagues will be offended if I say I

         24  think the work you've done here really has been,

         25  more so than any other committee, been changing the
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          2  policy of the City of New York, which is really our

          3  goal here, and I admire you for it. And this bill,

          4  in particular, I think will be the most meaningful

          5  thing that we've done thus far in this new Council.

          6  It's a terrifically important piece of legislation.

          7  I look forward to the day when you will go further

          8  and when same sex couples will have the same right

          9  to marry as any other couple in the City of New

         10  York, indeed within the United States of America.

         11  But until we get there, I think that this is an

         12  important step forward. I commend you for doing it.

         13  I very much look forward to being able to vote for

         14  this bill when it gets to the full Council.

         15                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         17  Council member. We're joined by the ever casual

         18  Council Member Bill Perkins, setting the fashion

         19  tone for the City Council during the summer.

         20                 I'd like to see now if Council Member

         21  Kendall Stewart has a comment, first, on the

         22  domestic partnership bill? Thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chair.

         25                 I feel that discrimination in any
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          2  form, whether it's the race, or even sex is wrong,

          3  and that's one of the main reasons why I support

          4  this bill.

          5                 And I'm glad that I can identify with

          6  you to make sure that we outlaw any form of

          7  discrimination.

          8                 Thank you very much, Council Member

          9  Stewart. And we are nearing quorum, we have four, we

         10  need five. I know Council Member Quinn is just

         11  finishing up next door, so before Council Member

         12  Perkins speaks to this bill, I would just like to

         13  note, I appreciate what Council Member Yassky said

         14  about where we need to go on a larger basis in the

         15  City and nationally, and there's been some

         16  questions, I just want to clarify here.

         17                 For example, I was asked earlier with

         18  the case of Vermont Civil Union, would this be

         19  recognized under this bill, and the point again is

         20  that if someone is a member of a civil union

         21  recognized in the State of Vermont, that would be

         22  recognized here as a domestic partnership in New

         23  York City under this bill, and that's a step

         24  forward.

         25                 I agree with David Yassky, we have to
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          2  go farther. But every time we take a step forward,

          3  again, we're adding a sort of naturalness and a

          4  clarity to the process that someone who is a

          5  domestic partner should be treated no differently.

          6                 And I think we have more work to do,

          7  in fact, even just with the New York City Domestic

          8  Partnership law as it is. We heard in our last

          9  hearing situations from individuals who still found

         10  the process of becoming a domestic partner much more

         11  difficult than it should be. I think there's hurdles

         12  in that process that we need to work on, and I think

         13  this is, again, every time we take one step it helps

         14  shine a light on the other outstanding issues that

         15  we have to resolve.

         16                 So, now let me see, Council Member

         17  Perkins, do you have a comment before we go on?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just wanted

         19  to first express my appreciation to you as the Chair

         20  of this Committee for so professionally and

         21  expeditiously moving this particular intro to the

         22  Committee and through the Committee.

         23                 You know, this Council has an

         24  extraordinary track record of standing up for the

         25  rights of all New Yorkers, and it's wonderful that
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          2  we can take this opportunity to recognize that those

          3  who have domestic rights and who are coupled, be

          4  recognized in our City in accordance with our laws.

          5  This, of course, is a sort of forward progressive

          6  reaching bill because it sets us apart in many

          7  important ways, and, so, I'm proud to be a prime

          8  sponsor and proud to be a member of this Committee,

          9  which has so consistently done this type of good

         10  work for the people of New York. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         12  Council Member.

         13                 Again, I want to thank everyone for

         14  their patience. I know it is 1:30, but it was

         15  crucial because of the legislative calendar that we

         16  pass this bill first today before we can move to the

         17  two bills being considered on domestic violence. So,

         18  I appreciate everyone's indulgence who is here for

         19  the other part of the hearing.

         20                 As I said earlier, the chief

         21  architect of this bill as just joined us, Council

         22  Member Chris Quinn, and she really, more than anyone

         23  in New York City, has brought to the fore a range of

         24  issues involving human rights and civil rights. But

         25  in this case in particular, she recognized and acted
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          2  on the fact that unless people can have their rights

          3  from another state recognized here equally, then

          4  we're not even close to the kind of equal rights we

          5  need here in New York City.

          6                 So, it's a pleasure, before we vote

          7  today, to have Council Member Quinn speak to this

          8  bill.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         10  Actually, I guess I technically have to vote on it,

         11  too, as a Committee member.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We're not

         13  voting at the moment.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Oh, I'm sorry,

         15  I thought we were voting and talking all at the same

         16  time.

         17                 Thank you, Chairperson DeBlasio, for

         18  your comments.

         19                 Actually, one of the other, I guess,

         20  code architects, if you will, is Speaker Miller, who

         21  actually recognized this inconsistency, this

         22  injustice, when he was a Council member about a year

         23  or so ago when we first began working on this piece

         24  of legislation, and then introduced it, and then,

         25  obviously, reintroduced it after he became Speaker,
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          2  which as one can imagine greatly enhanced its

          3  chances of passage, as we hope will happen today.

          4                 First, I just want to thank the staff

          5  who worked on this bill, which includes the Deputy

          6  Chief of Staff, Marcel Van Ooyen, who I think just

          7  came into the room. Timing is everything.

          8                 Jackie Sherman, the Counsel to the

          9  Committee, and Lucy Mao, my Legislative Director.

         10                 I want to say, I think the version of

         11  the bill we're voting on today is particularly

         12  significant and Jackie and Lucy deserve a lot of

         13  credit for that.

         14                 This bill, you'll note today, says

         15  that domestic partnerships, civil unions, and other

         16  marriages should be recognized, and it defines all

         17  marriages in a way that doesn't have to single out

         18  same sex marriages as different as other marriages

         19  and Jackie, in particular, worked hard to find a way

         20  to do that legislatively.

         21                 And I just want to note, I think it

         22  was interesting, you know, I, as an out lesbian

         23  legislator, was, like, fine, put the same sex in

         24  there, and Jackie and Lucy, as the allies in the

         25  heterosexual community, if I out them here in front
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          2  of everyone, said, "well, don't you think it's

          3  better if we move to a place legislatively where

          4  there actually isn't a distinction between the types

          5  of marriages?" and was able to find a way to do that

          6  legislatively.

          7                 So, I think that's very significant

          8  philosophically, but also significantly as it

          9  relates to legislation, because I think it's the

         10  first time that has happened in any type of

         11  legislation in this country, and Jackie in

         12  particular deserves recognition for that forward

         13  thinking and then figuring out how to do it in the

         14  Administrative Code. So, I want to thank you for

         15  doing that.

         16                 And I just want to lastly say, you

         17  know, this bill is important because we can't make

         18  marriage equal for all New Yorkers, the New York

         19  City Council, we don't have that power. What we do

         20  have the ability and the obligation to do is root

         21  out all inequalities which exist on a City level and

         22  all inequalities which exist in the Administrative

         23  Code, and this is part of doing that.

         24                 If you're married in Connecticut and

         25  you move to New York, you're still married. If
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          2  you're a domestic partner in Connecticut and you

          3  come here, you're no longer a domestic partner. And

          4  some might think that's symbolic, but symbolism is

          5  actually quite important, as it relates to

          6  relationships and many things. But the 9/11 tragedy

          7  I think showed us how it is much more than that.

          8                 The only same sex couples who have

          9  any chance of getting the recognition and benefits

         10  they deserve in the aftermath of that tragedy are

         11  those who actually have a domestic partnership

         12  registration form.

         13                 There are standards. You have to live

         14  together in New York for a year before you can

         15  register as a domestic partner. So, it is completely

         16  foreseeable that someone could have moved to New

         17  York from somewhere else where they are registered,

         18  been working in the World Trade Center, not yet had

         19  met the standards for domestic partnership -- which

         20  by the way, there's none for marriage. You can meet

         21  somebody, have a nice old time, go to Las Vegas,

         22  five minutes be married. And I don't begrudge

         23  anybody that, but there is a higher standard here

         24  for becoming a domestic partner, and those folks

         25  would not have been able to get any of the benefits
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          2  that they and their family deserve and need to move

          3  forward.

          4                 So, I think it's very important to

          5  know that there's even more significant, and perhaps

          6  Speaker Miller even recognized a year or so ago when

          7  he first proposed this idea to me.

          8                 So, I want to thank the Chair and the

          9  staff again for moving this forward so quickly.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         11                 And once again Council Member Quinn

         12  is ahead of the curve in recognizing the superiority

         13  of the staff of the General Welfare Committee, who

         14  are really as good as it gets, and I appreciate her

         15  kind comments.

         16                 Will the clerk please call the roll?

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Brewer.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Aye. And I

         25  want to thank everyone here, and also Ed Flannigan,
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          2  who is the person I mentioned earlier, and who is

          3  the former treasurer of the State of Vermont and who

          4  was the leader in the State of Vermont for that

          5  particular legislation. My friend.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Stewart.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote stands at six

         11  in the affirmative, zero negative, no abstentions.

         12  The item is adopted. The vote will remain open.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO:

         14  Congratulations, Council Member Quinn, and all

         15  members of the Committee, for this important step

         16  forward. And, again, we will keep the vote open for

         17  additional members who come later.

         18                 We are now going to turn to, you

         19  know, from one vital issue to another vital issue.

         20  We have two bills before us today related to

         21  domestic violence, and we're going to do just a

         22  brief, very brief opening presentation to frame

         23  these bills and then go straight to our witnesses.

         24                 Okay. Again, two pieces of

         25  legislation today. Intro. 107, introduced by my very
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          2  wonderful colleague David Yassky; and Intro.,

          3  proposed Intro. 120-A, which I have introduced with

          4  a number of my colleagues, and we will talk to each.

          5                 Let me first speak to the overall

          6  situation.

          7                 These numbers, many of you may know

          8  them, but I think a lot of people in New York City

          9  do not realize the magnitude of the problem.

         10                 Today we're holding this hearing

         11  because of just the extensive and troubling epidemic

         12  that we're experiencing today, in terms of violence

         13  against women, but also violence against partners of

         14  all kinds. And these two bills will extend

         15  protections to survivors of not just domestic

         16  violence per se, but also sex offenses and stalking.

         17  And these, again, these are epidemic problems.

         18                 In 2001, the New York City Police

         19  Department responded to over 230,000 domestic

         20  violence cases. A staggering number. Two-hundred and

         21  thirty-thousand domestic violence incidents. There

         22  is no way in the world that this City is paying

         23  enough attention. I mean, not just the City

         24  government, I mean all of us, are paying enough

         25  attention to this problem when it's a problem of
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          2  this magnitude.

          3                 In addition, the Police Department

          4  received nearly 2,000 reports of incidents of rape.

          5                 Now, again, unfortunately, in this

          6  Committee we often look at very troubling statistics

          7  and see that they're not unique to New York City.

          8  Let's look at the national picture.

          9                 Over 1 million domestic violence

         10  incidents in the United States each year, from 1993

         11  to 1998, one out of every six women, nationally, has

         12  been either raped or been a victim of an attempted

         13  rape, and 1 million women are victims are stalking

         14  crimes each year. Again, these are staggering

         15  statistics.

         16                 Men are victims of these types of

         17  crimes as well. Three-hundred and seventy-thousand

         18  men are victims of stalking crimes each year.

         19                 Now, let's talk about what survivors

         20  need, that's the point of these two bills.

         21                 We want to ensure three critical

         22  supports for survivors. They need emergency shelter,

         23  as quickly as possible, with as few barriers as

         24  possible. As long as they remain in their homes, on

         25  the streets in their old neighborhoods where the
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          2  batterer is, the problem can recur and it can recur

          3  on an even worse level. We're literally talking

          4  about a life and death matter here.

          5                 Once they're ready to leave emergency

          6  shelter, survivors need access to permanent housing,

          7  or they can begin new lives. They obviously need

          8  access to stable employment, and that's why Council

          9  Member Yassky's bill is so crucial.

         10                 Now, let's look specifically at the

         11  emergency shelter situation. Look at these numbers.

         12  Domestic Violence hot line receives 140,000 calls

         13  each year, but we only have 1,500 emergency shelter

         14  beds. You can do the math there. You have just a

         15  very small percentage of victims that can be

         16  accommodated in any one moment.

         17                 Half of the homeless women and

         18  children in the United States are fleeing domestic

         19  violence, which is another double jeopardy dynamic

         20  here. Average daily shelter request for last fiscal

         21  year was 30.7. Meaning, 30.7 requests a day, the

         22  average number of beds, 15.6.

         23                 I'd like to point out, because I

         24  think it's crucial that we set the proper tone in

         25  these hearings: We're not saying in any of this
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          2  proposed legislation today that we think the

          3  Administration takes these matters lightly. We

          4  don't. We've been very pleased with the

          5  responsiveness of the Administration. I hasten to

          6  add, the Administration is once again inheriting a

          7  set of dynamics, it's young administration grappling

          8  with this problem.

          9                 So, these pieces of legislation are

         10  not here today because someone down the hall is not

         11  minding the store. These pieces of legislation are

         12  here because it is a huge and growing problem that

         13  needs more defined solutions. We want to do that in

         14  partnership with the Bloomberg Administration, and

         15  this is a first step. And it's crucial that all of

         16  us who care about this issue here today listen to

         17  each other, listen to the folks who have been on the

         18  front line, listen to the advocates and listen to

         19  the Administration's very real concern so that we

         20  can find a way to take action here.

         21                 Now, let me just go and speak for a

         22  moment about one other aspect of Introduction 120-A

         23  that I've proposed.

         24                 Part of the problem here is the law,

         25  both New York State and New York City law is not as
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          2  clear as it could be. And this is a crucial point.

          3  When you're dealing with a quality of life issue,

          4  maybe you can afford a little bit of nebulousness in

          5  your law. When you're dealing with a life and death

          6  issue, you cannot go too far to clarify, and that's

          7  been our central argument in both these laws.

          8                 In the case of 120-A, if there's even

          9  a hint of a possibility that someone might be turned

         10  away from shelter because they don't have sufficient

         11  documentation, or because they happen to fall into a

         12  class of people that the law does not sufficiently

         13  recognize, we've got to do away with that gray area

         14  and make this crystal clear.

         15                 Again, we particularly feel that

         16  State law and State regulations are insufficient. We

         17  also feel that the message needs to be sent to

         18  everyone who works to help people, whether it's

         19  police officers or caseworkers, or anyone along the

         20  chain of providing support to survivors, that they

         21  should always air on the side of the survivor and

         22  always be as inclusive as possible.

         23                 Again, I always paint the picture,

         24  the last thing we want is that someone in genuine

         25  need felt they couldn't reach for shelter or was in
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          2  fact turned away from shelter simply because a piece

          3  of paperwork was not available to them. None of us

          4  want to see that happen.

          5                 And now to just speak again to a

          6  couple of items related to Council Member Yassky's

          7  bill, and then he'll have an opening statement

          8  before we go to the witnesses. Again, after leaving

          9  shelter, it is crucial that people not recognize or

         10  not experience additional discrimination. Again, a

         11  case of double jeopardy. Someone has already been a

         12  victim of domestic violence, now they run into

         13  discrimination in housing and employment. Again, the

         14  numbers are telling. In a recent survey, 57 percent

         15  of cities identified domestic violence as the

         16  primary cause of homelessness, also suggesting that

         17  the discrimination will follow with it, that

         18  unfortunately landlords and employers will see

         19  domestic violence victims through the lens of either

         20  homelessness, or as somehow involved in a crime, and

         21  discriminate against them, whether they mean to or

         22  not, that could be the actual outcome.

         23                 Also, in terms of employment,

         24  discrimination against victims of domestic violence

         25  undermines, not only their lives, it undermines our
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          2  entire economy, as does all discrimination.

          3  Survivors need stable employment to get their lives

          4  and their families' lives together, and they face

          5  job discrimination on a very consistent basis.

          6                 According to the US General

          7  Accounting Office, between 25 and 50 percent of

          8  domestic violence victims reported that they had

          9  lost a job, at least in part due to domestic

         10  violence. And the Bureau of National Affairs

         11  estimated that domestic violence costs United States

         12  employers between 3 billion and 5 billion dollars a

         13  year, an incredible dislocation. And I want to end

         14  on that note, and thank Council Member Yassky, and

         15  he will speak to this now, because, again, when you

         16  look at the numbers and when you look at the extent

         17  of the problem, it's 100 percent clear that we have

         18  to act, and this legislation cannot be passed one

         19  moment too soon.

         20                 Let me allow Council Member Yassky

         21  now an opening statement.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         23  much, Mr. Chair. I very much appreciate, and I want

         24  to commend and congratulate you for your leadership

         25  on this issue. I also want to recognize and commend
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          2  and salute the long-term and longstanding efforts of

          3  our colleague Tracy Boyland, Chair of the Women's

          4  Issues Committee, who I know has been working on

          5  this issue in the previous Council, as well as this

          6  one, and laid all of the groundwork for continued

          7  progress and continued action on it.

          8                 A lot of people I think are under the

          9  misconception that domestic violence is a thing of

         10  the past, or least we've kind of got it under

         11  control, because people have been talking about it

         12  for awhile, there have been, you know, initiatives

         13  on it for several years now, and while we have made

         14  some progress, certainly particularly with the

         15  governmental response, I mean as recently as ten

         16  years ago it was commonplace for police officers who

         17  would show up at the home, at a violent home, to

         18  say, you know, cool down and just walk away and

         19  leave women in dire jeopardy of serious injury,

         20  sometimes even to being killed. We've really done a

         21  lot on the governmental response, but this problem

         22  persists and the numbers are mind-boggling.

         23                 Mr. Chairman, you pointed out 230,000

         24  incidents a year, I would point out, 24,000 domestic

         25  violence arrests every year that the New York Police
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          2  Department makes, that's 65 a day. Every day the

          3  NYPD is arresting 55 people for domestic violence.

          4  The epidemic, you know, I'd like to think that we're

          5  getting it under control, but we've still got an

          6  epidemic on our hands and we have to deal with it.

          7                 And part of the solution, as you say,

          8  Mr. Chair, is enabling women to get a foothold of

          9  independence, and that means stable employment, it

         10  means a home.

         11                 And, unfortunately, what we found is

         12  that women sometimes trying to get that foothold of

         13  independence, trying to flee the abusive situation,

         14  get out only to find a hostile workplace or a

         15  hostile residential marketplace.

         16                 A landlord can all too easily see a

         17  woman who is being stalked by a violent ex-boyfriend

         18  or an ex-husband as a trouble maker, or a source of

         19  trouble that they'd just rather not have around.

         20  Now, that's unconscionable.

         21                 A woman who has been the victim of

         22  domestic violence should not be victimized again

         23  when she goes to rent an apartment, she should not

         24  be victimized again when she goes to find a job, and

         25  what this legislation tries to do is end the double
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          2  victimization that perpetuates domestic violence.

          3                 Mr. Chair, I just want to thank you,

          4  again, for your tremendous leadership on this issue,

          5  for convening this hearing, and considering these

          6  two very important pieces of legislation. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          8  Council Member.

          9                 And now we're going to move to the

         10  first panel.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Mr. Chairman,

         12  before we swear in that panel, I just want to beg

         13  your forgiveness. A friend and former colleague of

         14  the Council, her mother died, it was announced

         15  yesterday, and I'm going to go to the service on her

         16  behalf, along with Gale Brewer.

         17                 So, I'll be back, if time permits, to

         18  participate in the balance of the hearing, but I

         19  want to make that funeral service.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you for

         21  informing us. I'm very sorry to hear of your loss.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It is

         23  Councilwoman Ruth Messinger's mother.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Oh my God,

         25  really?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I'm also in

          3  that same situation, and, so, we will be back as

          4  soon as possible.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. I'm

          6  very sorry to hear it. Please pass the whole

          7  Committee's condolences along.

          8                 Okay, we're going to hear now from

          9  the Administration, followed by a number of people

         10  who have immense experience related to these issues.

         11                 And, again, I want to welcome the

         12  Administration representatives, Yolanda Jimenez;

         13  Clifford Mulqueen, and Cecile Noel.

         14                 Okay, again, we welcome each of the

         15  representatives of the Administration. Anyone who

         16  will be speaking, either upfront or in response to

         17  questions, please introduce yourself, and, again, as

         18  we always say, and we would really appreciate this,

         19  your written remarks will be entered into the

         20  record, so we always appreciate summary so that we

         21  can spend the time on the Q and A.

         22                 So, if each person would introduce

         23  themselves before they speak, we'd appreciate it.

         24                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: Good afternoon,

         25  Chairman DeBlasio and members of the Committee on
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          2  General Welfare.

          3                 My name is Yolanda Jimenez, and I'm

          4  the Commissioner for the Mayor's Office to Combat

          5  Domestic Violence.

          6                 I am joined by Cecile Noel, Deputy

          7  Commissioner for the Human Resources Administration,

          8  Office of Domestic Violence and emergency

          9  intervention services; Cliff Mulqueen, Deputy

         10  Commissioner for the Commission on Human Rights, and

         11  John Feinblatt, Criminal Justice Coordinator.

         12                 I would like to thank the City

         13  Council for inviting us to testify today. I have

         14  been directly involved with New York City government

         15  for the past 20 years, most recently as the Deputy

         16  Commissioner for the Office of Community Affairs in

         17  the New York City Police Department.

         18                 In November, the people of the City

         19  voted to amend the City Charter, making the

         20  Commission to Combat Family Violence a permanent

         21  part of City government.

         22                 Mayor Bloomberg supported this

         23  initiative and further demonstrated his commitment

         24  by appointing a Commissioner to head this most

         25  important office.
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          2                 Under the revised charter, the

          3  mandate of the Mayor's Office to Combat Domestic

          4  Violence, is to formulate policies and programs

          5  relating to all aspects of domestic violence.

          6  Because these issues fall within the jurisdiction of

          7  various City agencies, we're developing an

          8  integrated approach to confront the problem of

          9  domestic violence by coordinating existing services

         10  and systems.

         11                 I'm honored to have been appointed as

         12  the first Commissioner to head this office and would

         13  like to state my unequivocal commitment to reducing

         14  domestic violence in our City, improving services

         15  for victims of domestic violence.

         16                 It's a big job, one that involves

         17  City agencies, community-based organizations, victim

         18  advocates and victims themselves.

         19                 Since January 1st, I've had the

         20  privilege of meeting with domestic violence victims

         21  and their advocates, touring shelters and attending

         22  numerous task force meetings to help identify needs

         23  and barriers to service delivery.

         24                 It is clear that domestic violence is

         25  a complicated issue, it's more than one solution.
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          2                 My office has focused its efforts on

          3  several key areas. First, we have developed

          4  innovative programs to improve the response of City

          5  agencies and community-based organizations to

          6  domestic violence situations.

          7                 Perhaps no new initiative better

          8  captures the complexity of the problem, while

          9  offering a model for a coordinated City response

         10  than DVRT, Domestic Violence Response Teams. Mayor

         11  Bloomberg announced this initiative to the public in

         12  May and has pledged to continue support for DVRT.

         13                 This program designed to respond to

         14  victims and children experiencing chronic domestic

         15  violence through a comprehensive community effort.

         16  Teams of domestic violence specialists from multiple

         17  City agencies will identify high-risk households and

         18  provide comprehensive services. Their goal is to

         19  reduce domestic violence through intervention and

         20  coordinated service delivery, speeding the victim

         21  into shelter when necessary, or keeping them at home

         22  when appropriate. The purpose of DVRT, in fact, is

         23  to make sure our high-risk households get immediate,

         24  comprehensive services right in their neighborhood.

         25                 We recently initiated two pilot
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          2  programs, one in the Soundview Section of the Bronx,

          3  and one in East Flatbush in Brooklyn. Both areas

          4  have generated some of the highest numbers of

          5  Domestic Incident Reports to the police over the

          6  past year.

          7                 This innovative pilot will allow my

          8  office to assess how the City responds to the needs

          9  of domestic violence victims, agency by agency.

         10                 Another innovative program is the

         11  Community/Law Enforcement Collaboration Project.

         12  Working with the NYPD, this project will train

         13  officers to respond to domestic violence incidents

         14  in diverse homes.

         15                 Oftentimes, officers arrive on the

         16  scene of domestic violence disputes in immigrant

         17  communities and find victims who speak limited

         18  English and have lived in isolation within their own

         19  homes and communities.

         20                 These victims have a number of fears,

         21  including lack of understanding about the legal

         22  system, concern over immigration issues and a

         23  general fear of getting by on their own without

         24  income and skills.

         25                 Officers must carry out mandated
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          2  arrests and enforce orders of protection, while

          3  gaining victims' trust and helping them obtain

          4  needed support.

          5                 To meet this challenge, the project

          6  will ensure that our police officers have a thorough

          7  understanding of the cultural factors that shape

          8  incidents of domestic violence, and how to better

          9  communicate with victims during the arrest process.

         10                 The Community/Law Enforcement

         11  Collaboration Project will help to address this need

         12  by soliciting input directly from diverse

         13  communities in order to develop a new training

         14  curriculum for police officers and

         15  community-specific public information campaigns.

         16                 Currently, I am meeting individually

         17  with commissioners and staff from each of these

         18  agencies to develop a comprehensive strategy that

         19  provides seamless service with the ultimate goal of

         20  reducing incidents of domestic violence. As you can

         21  see from these examples, this Administration is

         22  committed to the prompt and sensitive delivery of

         23  services to domestic violence victims.

         24                 My role is coordinating service

         25  delivery among 14 City agencies that currently
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          2  provide domestic violence intervention, at a cost of

          3  over $170 million. From HRA to ACS, the Department

          4  of Homeless Services, to the NYPD, to the Department

          5  of the Aging, each agency shares a commitment to

          6  meeting the immediate needs of domestic violence

          7  victims, while also meeting the mandate of their own

          8  agencies.

          9                 The Mayor's Office to Combat Domestic

         10  Violence aims to strengthen communications between

         11  the agencies, to successfully meet the complicated

         12  needs of domestic violence victims.

         13                 It is our intention to meet this goal

         14  in a way that offers support and compassion to

         15  victims.

         16                 In fact, as an expression of that

         17  commitment, I meet weekly with the Deputy Mayor for

         18  Legal Affairs and the Criminal Justice Coordinator

         19  to discuss critical issues and develop strategies

         20  for domestic violence prevention and offender

         21  accountability.

         22                 The Office to Combat Domestic

         23  Violence supports legislation designed to protect

         24  and support victims of domestic violence. However,

         25  both proposed local laws, Intro. 120-A and 107 raise
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          2  concerns.

          3                 First, as you know, it took decades

          4  and decades for the law enforcement community and

          5  the courts to recognize domestic violence as a

          6  crime, and to encourage domestic violence victims to

          7  come forward.

          8                 Our office steadfastly supports and

          9  encourages victims to report incidents of domestic

         10  violence to the police, and to obtain orders of

         11  protection from the courts and to gain greater

         12  protection for themselves and their children.

         13                 In addition, the language of the

         14  proposed local laws is at cross-purposes with the

         15  efforts of our office, the courts, domestic violence

         16  advocates, child protective workers and law

         17  enforcement to encourage victims to gain greater

         18  protection through the intervention of the police

         19  and the issuance of an order of protection by the

         20  courts.

         21                 Further, without police intervention

         22  and/or the issuance of an order of protection there

         23  can be no offender accountability.

         24                 By contrast, the language of proposed

         25  Intro. 120-A could act to undermine this progress by
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          2  stating that: "Victims of domestic violence who

          3  apply for emergency shelter pursuant to Section

          4  131-u of the social services law shall not be

          5  required to provide documentary evidence of the

          6  incidents of domestic violence, such as a police

          7  report or orders of protection, to be deemed

          8  eligible for emergency shelter or related services.

          9                 Second, we are concerned that the

         10  proposed language could have a chilling affect on

         11  the domestic violence worker's ability to assess a

         12  victim's circumstances.

         13                 Questions asked during a shelter

         14  assessment are relevant to determining the

         15  appropriate shelter placement for the victim.

         16  Barring the staff from asking such questions could

         17  increase the victim's risk for facing repeat

         18  violence.

         19                 For example, the victim may require

         20  placement in a more secure facility based upon the

         21  existence of an order of protection.

         22                 Third, the language of this bill

         23  presupposes that presenting a police report or an

         24  order of protection is a condition precedent to

         25  gaining access to shelter.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 In fact, the necessary guidance

          3  already exists in the current law for determining

          4  whether or not a person applying for shelter is a

          5  victim of domestic violence.

          6                 The current language of the social

          7  service law provides procedures to ensure the

          8  protection of victims of domestic violence by

          9  defining the proof required to establish whether an

         10  individual is a victim of domestic violence. It

         11  says:

         12                 "The domestic violence liaison shall

         13  assess the credibility of the individual's assertion

         14  of domestic violence. Such assessment shall be based

         15  upon the relevant information and corroborating

         16  evidence, but shall in the absence of other

         17  sufficient evidence, include, at a minimum, the

         18  sworn statement by the individual alleging such

         19  abuse."

         20                 Therefore, the language of proposed

         21  Intro. 120-A is unnecessary because the Social

         22  Services Law currently provides for a structure in

         23  which to determine eligibility for domestic violence

         24  shelter services.

         25                 A similar concern is raised by the
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          2  language of proposed Intro. 107. The proposed

          3  legislation defines a victim of domestic violence,

          4  stalking or sex offenses as "persons who has been

          5  subjected to acts which would constitute violations

          6  of the penal law."

          7                 Again, such a broad definition,

          8  without the requirement to provide documentary

          9  evidence in the form of a police report or order of

         10  protection would not only make it difficult to

         11  determine whether the individual required

         12  accommodation by an employee or a landlord, but also

         13  flies in the face of efforts to encourage victims to

         14  report crimes of domestic violence to the police and

         15  to obtain orders of protection from the courts.

         16                 We recognize that the New York City

         17  domestic violence system can be a difficult one to

         18  navigate; and the population of victims who need our

         19  services is enormous.

         20                 In spite of this, we are committed to

         21  streamlining the process, so that ultimately victims

         22  and their children are safe and batterers are held

         23  accountable. But legislating how domestic violence

         24  experts determine victims' needs and watering down

         25  our commitment to encouraging victims to report
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          2  their situation to the police and use the courts is

          3  a step in the wrong direction.

          4                 We approach our mission in a spirit

          5  of partnership and cooperation with City agencies,

          6  elected officials, community-based organizations,

          7  victim advocates, and most importantly, the victims

          8  who need our services.

          9                 Domestic violence is a devastating

         10  crime that harms individuals both physically and

         11  psychologically, and can destroy entire families.

         12  Victims often require an array of services,

         13  including emergency shelter, healthcare, child

         14  protection, legal assistance and job training.

         15                 In closing, the Office to Combat

         16  Domestic Violence has focused its efforts on

         17  coordinating and monitoring the services of 14 City

         18  agencies that provide domestic violence services;

         19                 - developing effective prevention and

         20  intervention programs, such as DVRT, that bring

         21  together the expertise of a number of agencies and

         22  community-based organizations to help at-risk

         23  households;

         24                 - working with diverse communities

         25  throughout the City to provide culturally-specific
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          2  educational campaigns that seek to change attitudes

          3  towards domestic violence behavior and provide clear

          4  information on available services;

          5                 - and holding batterers accountable.

          6                 While we recognize and acknowledge

          7  the complexity faced by the domestic violence

          8  victim, a change in the current law may not be

          9  necessary. I welcome the opportunity to meet with

         10  members of this Committee to address specific

         11  procedural implementations of the current law.

         12                 I would now like to yield the floor

         13  to my colleague, Cecile Noel, Deputy Commissioner

         14  for Human Resources Administration's Office of

         15  Domestic Violence and Emergency Intervention

         16  Services.

         17                 Thank you, and I look forward to

         18  working with you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. Let

         20  me just jump in for a moment. First, I would like to

         21  recognize the presence of Council Member Jose

         22  Serrano.

         23                 And second, I just want to make sure

         24  my colleagues on the Committee are comfortable with

         25  letting the whole panel speak first, just so we have
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          2  all the information on the table. So, if there's no

          3  objection to that, we'll let the rest of the panel

          4  go forward.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER NOEL: Thank you.

          7  Good afternoon, Council members. My name is Cecile

          8  Noel, Deputy Commissioner for the Human Resources

          9  Administration, Office of Domestic Violence and

         10  Emergency Intervention Services.

         11                 The Human Resources Administration,

         12  through the Office of Domestic Violence, provides

         13  temporary emergency shelter and supportive services

         14  for victims of domestic violence and their dependent

         15  children.

         16                 HRA directly operates one emergency

         17  domestic violence shelter, and oversees the

         18  reimbursement of 34 residential programs. It also

         19  oversees and provides client referrals for four

         20  transitional housing programs for victims of

         21  domestic violence.

         22                 HRA also funds 11 non-residential

         23  service providers, as well as numerous other

         24  domestic violence prevention programs.

         25                 Domestic violence emergency shelters
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          2  are licensed and regulated by the New York State

          3  Office of Children and Family Services.

          4                 Domestic violence transitional

          5  shelters are licensed and regulated by the New York

          6  State Office of Temporary Disability Assistance.

          7                 The Human Resources Administration

          8  and the Criminal Justice Coordinator's Office

          9  contract with Safe Horizon to operate the Domestic

         10  Violence Hot line.

         11                 Recently the State conducted an audit

         12  of the hot line and gave an outstanding evaluation

         13  to their ability to assess clients, determine those

         14  most at risk, and make appropriate referrals to

         15  shelter.

         16                 Clients can access the domestic

         17  violence system through the Domestic Violence Hot

         18  Line. The hot line is operated 24 hours a day, seven

         19  days a week.

         20                 The hot line screens callers and

         21  links them with appropriate domestic violence

         22  services.

         23                 These services may include referrals

         24  to non-residential services, legal services and

         25  shelter.
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          2                 If, for any reason, the hot line is

          3  unable to secure shelter placement a caller and his

          4  or her children, the caller is directed to the

          5  Department of Homeless Services, DHS, Emergency

          6  Assistance Unit, the EAU.

          7                 The caller is also instructed to tell

          8  the intake worker at the EAU they are a victim of

          9  domestic violence and ask to see the NOVA worker.

         10                 If this is a single person, the

         11  caller is instructed to go to DHS Single Assessment

         12  Center.

         13                 Clients are also referred to the EAU

         14  by the District Attorney's Office, by the police, by

         15  community-based organizations and our domestic

         16  violence liaison, located in the job centers

         17  throughout the City.

         18                 Any client going to the EAU can

         19  self-declare as a victim of domestic violence and

         20  will be referred by DHS to the NOVA unit. In

         21  addition, if at any point in the DHS interview a

         22  client indicates that he or she is a victim of

         23  domestic violence, a referral will be made to the

         24  NOVA unit.

         25                 Project NOVA is a federally funded
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          2  program overseen by the Office of Domestic Violence

          3  at HRA. Project NOVA social workers staff this unit

          4  at the EAU 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

          5  Project NOVA social workers are specially trained in

          6  domestic violence and crisis intervention. The state

          7  developed training modules that are part of the

          8  curriculum that's used to train the staff.

          9                 Every client referred to the NOVA

         10  unit is interviewed and a determination is made

         11  about the client's eligibility for the NOVA program.

         12  A NOVA social worker conducts a thorough interview

         13  with each client and determinations are made on a

         14  case-by-case basis consistent with the State

         15  administrative directives.

         16                 During the interview the social

         17  worker discusses safety issues.

         18                 Documentation, if available, is an

         19  important part of case management and safety

         20  planning. The client is asked if there is an order

         21  of protection and/or a police report. These

         22  documents often can be helpful to client safety.

         23                 Obtaining either of these documents

         24  is never suggested if it might place the client at

         25  greater risk. And at no time are these documents
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          2  required as a prerequisite for referral to the

          3  domestic violence shelter system or to

          4  non-residential domestic violence services.

          5                 Once an eligibility determination is

          6  made, the NOVA worker attempts to place the family

          7  in the domestic violence shelter system.

          8                 If there is no space available in the

          9  domestic violence shelter system, the client is

         10  referred to DHS as a NOVA client.

         11                 I thank you for asking me to speak

         12  with you here today. I now yield the floor to Cliff

         13  Mulqueen, Deputy Commissioner of the Commission on

         14  Human Rights.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN:

         16  Chairman DeBlasio, members of the Council, good

         17  afternoon. My name is Cliff Mulqueen, I'm one of the

         18  Deputy Commissioners at the City Commission on Human

         19  Rights, testifying on behalf of Commissioner

         20  Patricia Gatling, who is out of the country.

         21                 Now, while the Commission supports

         22  the need to provide assistance to victims of

         23  domestic violence, stalking and sex offenses, we

         24  have some concern regarding the proposed legislation

         25  and its enforcement.
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          2                 Now, given the criminal nature of the

          3  acts covered by the proposed legislation, there is

          4  the possibility of interfering with ongoing criminal

          5  investigations being conducted by the Police

          6  Department and the District Attorney's Offices.

          7  Sworn statements from the complainants, which are

          8  required by the Commission, are subject to subpoena

          9  by defense attorneys in a criminal action, and may

         10  jeopardize those criminal prosecutions.

         11                 Another concern relates to the

         12  definition of a victim of domestic violence,

         13  stalking or sex offenses. The proposed legislation

         14  defines a victim as "a person who has been subjected

         15  to acts which shall include but not limited to acts

         16  which would constitute violations of the panel law."

         17                 In the absence of a requirement that

         18  an employee or tenant provide a police report, a

         19  court order or documentation from a qualified

         20  counselor advocate, the employer or the landlord

         21  would have to analyze and interpret the penal law to

         22  determine who is protected by this proposed

         23  legislation.

         24                 Lastly, we question whether

         25  self-identification as a victim of domestic
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          2  violence, stalking or sex offenses without any

          3  supporting documentation should trigger legal

          4  obligations to provide a reasonable accommodation.

          5                 A victim's request for a reasonable

          6  accommodation from an employer or landlord should be

          7  treated the same way as an individual's request for

          8  reasonable accommodation due to his or her

          9  disability.

         10                 In an emergency or where an

         11  employee's disability and need for accommodation are

         12  readily apparent to an employer, the employee is not

         13  required to produce documentation. Where the

         14  disability and need for accommodation are not

         15  apparent, the employer has the right to require

         16  documentation and evaluate the request.

         17                 Likewise, in those circumstances

         18  where a domestic violence, stalking or sex crime

         19  victim manifests obvious signs of abuse or violence,

         20  the victim should not be required to produce

         21  documentation of his or her need for an

         22  accommodation.

         23                 Where the abuse and need for

         24  accommodation are not readily apparent, the employer

         25  or landlord should have the right to request
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          2  supporting documentation.

          3                 Requiring an employer or landlord to

          4  provide accommodations without supporting

          5  documentation of the need for them may lead to an

          6  abuse of the protections afforded by the law.

          7                 In addition, it would create

          8  inequities in the burdens that must be borne by

          9  persons with disability and the victims of domestic

         10  violence, stalking or sex offenses.

         11                 We look forward to collaborating with

         12  you, if you wish, on these issues and how to address

         13  them.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. And

         16  we always look forward to collaborating. We've tried

         17  to set a tone in this Committee of working in a

         18  constructive way with the Administration. We

         19  sometimes will not agree and sometimes may not be

         20  able to get the consensus, but it's always our goal,

         21  so we would very much look forward to continuing

         22  discussions of how we can do better on this issue.

         23                 Let me just start with a few very

         24  quick questions, then I want to turn to Tracy

         25  Boyland and David Yassky for some initial questions,
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          2  and then we'll go to other members of the Committee.

          3                 On the question, I just want to very

          4  quickly respond to some of the testimony, Ms. Noel's

          5  testimony, which I appreciate.

          6                 I understand your experience and your

          7  understanding as an administrator that there's

          8  almost an automaticness (phonetic) in your view,

          9  that if someone declares themselves a survivor of

         10  domestic violence, they will be accommodated. And I

         11  expect that that is what your experience tells you.

         12  What you will hear from some witnesses coming up

         13  soon is that that is not what they've experienced.

         14                 So, again, this is not a gotcha

         15  situation, this is not anything but, you know,

         16  professionals and public servants trying to work

         17  together here, but I just wanted to say for the

         18  record, the information this Committee has received

         19  is that although the intent is there to be flexible

         20  and inclusive, the reality is not always there.

         21                 Again, I just want to emphasize in my

         22  opening statement, I did try and make abundantly

         23  clear that I believe the Administration is trying to

         24  address this question. We're not debating moral

         25  intent, we're trying to figure out if the current
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          2  structure is sufficient. Our feeling at this moment

          3  is it needs clarifying and strengthening.

          4                 On Ms. Jimenez's testimony, I just

          5  want to go through a few points. And, again, on the

          6  clearly positive side, I'm very pleased, I'm sure my

          7  colleagues are about the DVRT program, and,

          8  obviously, again, especially given the public law

          9  that was passed and the new focus on coordination

         10  between agencies, that's all to the good, and we're

         11  very clear about your devotion to it, and we're glad

         12  there's innovation going on.

         13                 We, I think on this Committee as an

         14  oversight committee, naturally, we have a natural

         15  and I think healthy skepticism about the distance

         16  between policy and implementation, which especially

         17  in New York City is a difficult connection to make.

         18  So, that's where our concern comes from, not the

         19  question of whether you're trying to come up with

         20  innovative and helpful policies.

         21                 I will say, and, again, in a spirit

         22  of just honesty and not any effort at being overly

         23  dramatic, I'm troubled on page six. I understand the

         24  concept when you say that without police

         25  intervention or an issuance of an order of
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          2  protection there can be no offender accountability.

          3  I understand the concept. I think a lot of us on

          4  this Committee may be a little troubled by the idea

          5  of offender, not offender accountability, but of

          6  accountability being applied to the victim in a way

          7  that might not allow the victim to get the help they

          8  need. So, you've used a phrase here related to the

          9  offender, I'm concerned at what the underlying

         10  message is, is that we're putting the need to ensure

         11  the exact details of the victim's circumstance ahead

         12  of the desire to make sure the services are readily

         13  available. And, again, we welcome you helping us to

         14  understand better, but, again, people who have

         15  spoken to us in preparation for this hearing, have

         16  portrayed a situation which it is not always clear

         17  that the victim gets the help and then there's a

         18  follow-up process to ensure that the information is

         19  accurate. In fact, that accuracy check is being put

         20  in the beginning of the process, and that's where

         21  we're concerned. We want to make sure that the valid

         22  need for accuracy does not interfere with serving

         23  the victim.

         24                 Furthermore, I think I hear in your

         25  testimony an assumption that somehow there is a
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          2  mutually exclusive dynamic between encouraging

          3  people to file a police record, and seek other types

          4  of legal support, versus getting emergency shelter.

          5                 What we're concerned about here is we

          6  want to see both happen. We would love nothing more

          7  than to see anyone who needed shelter get it

          8  automatically and be encouraged simultaneously to

          9  follow through with the police and with the legal

         10  system.

         11                 But here's the question: Isn't it

         12  common sense that the first need is to protect the

         13  victim and the victim's family? Because God forbid

         14  that didn't happen, all the police records in the

         15  world wouldn't save you, and because of the real

         16  complex nature of domestic violence, and the fact

         17  that so many unfortunate dynamics could put a victim

         18  in jeopardy, even though they don't realize it,

         19  don't we have to ensure that we absolutely secure

         20  the victim's situation first and worry about

         21  legality second?

         22                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: Absolutely. And

         23  we certainly would agree with that statement. We're

         24  all concerned about victim safety, and we're all

         25  concerned about their ability to access services,
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          2  and certainly that of shelter, and we're not looking

          3  to put barriers between accessing shelter services

          4  and accessing the criminal justice system.

          5                 As you just stated, we are looking at

          6  the issue from a very broad perspective, and, yes, a

          7  very complex one, and we would want to encourage

          8  victims to report crimes to police.

          9                 You mentioned earlier that last year

         10  there were over 230 DIRs that were reported to the

         11  Police Department. Clearly that's happening. Clearly

         12  victims are coming forward and we want to encourage

         13  that and continue for that to happen.

         14                 In my testimony, and in the testimony

         15  of Deputy Commissioner Noel, the entrance to

         16  shelter, and having the documents of a police report

         17  and an order of protection is not a prerequisite.

         18  We're not making the assumption that you can't enter

         19  into the system without having those documents.

         20                 On the other hand, we are very much

         21  saying that we want to encourage you to go through

         22  the criminal justice system as well. It's not an

         23  easy issue to deal with, it's a very complex one.

         24  It's one that also has to take situations on

         25  case-by-case, and we're looking at that and I think

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  that HRA and the assessments that they have put in

          3  place is a host of criteria to really give those

          4  staff members an ability to assess what the

          5  situation is of the person that's coming before

          6  them.

          7                 And I think we have to allow for that

          8  to take place.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Just one

         10  follow-up, for you, Ms. Jimenez, and then for Ms.

         11  Noel.

         12                 Again, with no question about good

         13  intent, can you say honestly that there is no

         14  situation in which a genuine victim is being turned

         15  away? Meaning, do you feel that it is right now

         16  literally possible for a legitimate victim to be

         17  turned away because of lack of documentation or

         18  inability to prove that they are a victim?

         19                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: It's something

         20  that's very possible. It may happen, but what we're

         21  saying is, you know, don't take away the criteria

         22  that will allow someone to make that decision, given

         23  the documentation that a victim may have.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Before I turn

         25  it over to my colleague, I just would say, again,
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          2  understanding we're all trying to achieve the larger

          3  goal, I think that's the crux of the problem. Your

          4  focus is a valid focus on ensuring that the legal

          5  process is carried through, and your testimony

          6  speaks clearly to why that is part of a historical

          7  trend to try and overcome some of the stigma here

          8  and ensure that people seek all their rights.

          9                 I think our concern is that, but also

         10  that no one be put in harm's way for any reasons.

         11  Again, because of the nature of this tragic type of

         12  crime, we literally can't find out an hour too late

         13  that someone is in need. And because of that delay

         14  or because of any kind of roadblock we lost someone,

         15  or we lost a family member, or whatever it may be.

         16                 Unfortunately you have a very, very

         17  tough job on your hand, and I guess we're trying to

         18  say we want this as failsafe as anything humanly can

         19  be, and if there's even a hint of a barrier, we want

         20  that barrier removed so that any victim of domestic

         21  violence can get to safety immediately.

         22                 That's important a public safety

         23  priority as anything you can think of in New York

         24  City today.

         25                 Let me turn it over to Council Member
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          2  Boyland, and as I do, I just want to say that

          3  Council Member Boyland and the Women's Issues

          4  Committee have done tremendous work on this issue,

          5  and we will, both on the follow-up hearing on this

          6  issue and other issues that are related, we will be

          7  doing them jointly with the Women's Issues Committee

          8  from this point on.

          9                 Council Member Boyland.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman.

         12                 As we look forward, I think after

         13  meeting with the Commissioner, I think we are in

         14  agreement that women and children's safety should be

         15  a priority. And this Administration has proven that

         16  they have begun to work forward to make this process

         17  work better.

         18                 The City Council has not only said

         19  the words, but we have put our money where our mouth

         20  really is, and we have begun by in our budget

         21  dedicating $1 million to the domestic violence

         22  issue. So, we are working and we understand, and

         23  after meeting with you, Commissioner Yolanda, after

         24  sitting down and talking to you, we know that this

         25  is something that we know that you will be
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          2  championing and we will be working with you to pull

          3  this together.

          4                 Let me just read a statement from the

          5  Commissioner on Human Rights, who I thought was very

          6  eloquent.

          7                 "Victims request for reasonable

          8  accommodation from an employee or landlord should be

          9  treated in the same way as an individual's request

         10  for reasonable accommodation of his or her

         11  disability.

         12                 I think that's very eloquent in terms

         13  of how we're looking at victims of domestic

         14  violence.

         15                 Knowing Pat Gatling, I know that she

         16  is a champion also in dealing with this issue, and I

         17  look forward to working with you and in the next few

         18  years, with the extension we'll be here til 2005, so

         19  we have a lot of work that we can continue to do on

         20  this particular issue.

         21                 But let me just digress on this one

         22  particular issue what we're talking about.

         23                 Commissioner, there was a mention

         24  about the secured facilities that have been

         25  available for a victim of domestic violence. In our
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          2  first hearing that we did in February from the

          3  Women's Committee, we found that there needs to be

          4  sort of a smoother transition, one, from the hostile

          5  situation that the domestic violence victim is

          6  dealing with into a system where she's making a

          7  transition, because in certain situations she takes

          8  her children, she leaves her home, she leaves her

          9  job because of the stalking situation, or whatever

         10  the situation, and she's put in a situation where

         11  she has to start all over.

         12                 In dealing, first of all, how many

         13  secured facilities are there? And how can we begin

         14  to do the development or the housing that's

         15  necessary so we can begin to put these women and

         16  families back on the track that we need to have them

         17  on?

         18                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: The City

         19  currently has 34 domestic violence shelters

         20  throughout, and certainly the numbers have increased

         21  over the last number of years to about 1,600 or so

         22  beds, certainly not enough given the request.

         23                 In your earlier presentation you

         24  articulated the numbers that come to the hot line

         25  now, well, that number is the number of people
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          2  calling the hot line, not necessarily the number of

          3  request for beds. But, still, the request is almost

          4  a two to one request, so that the issue of housing

          5  and developing additional beds is something that the

          6  Administration is very much mindful of, and working

          7  towards.

          8                 Commissioner Noel, would you like to

          9  add something to that?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Is there a

         11  partnership with Safe Horizons and you?

         12                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: Yes,

         13  absolutely. We work very closely with Safe Horizons.

         14  Many of the programs, well, they run the hot line,

         15  which is certainly the entry point for many domestic

         16  violence victims, not just into shelter, but into

         17  other services, such as counseling, safe at home

         18  programs that allow them to provide locks and

         19  equipment, and other things that, you know, again,

         20  you mentioned earlier how devastating it is for a

         21  victim of domestic violence to have to leave her

         22  home, to have to move out with her children. There

         23  are also some innovative programs that the

         24  Commission and the HRA have instituted, such as the

         25  Alternative to Shelter Program, where the idea is
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          2  let's keep the victim at home. Let's make her safe.

          3  Let's make sure she has all the support and the

          4  resources and that she can stay where she should be.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And the DA's

          6  office is working with you, as well?

          7                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: We work very

          8  closely with all the District Attorneys' offices in

          9  these various programs, and certainly in our new

         10  program DVRT, to make sure that cases have followed

         11  through and with the courts.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Let me just

         13  ask you another question. What 14 agencies, I would

         14  assume it would be New York City Housing, Probation,

         15  DA's office, NYPD, what 14 agencies are you meeting

         16  with regularly to pull this whole operation --

         17                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: Certainly some

         18  of the larger ones that you just enumerated are key

         19  in this endeavor, and that is HRA, given the fact

         20  that HRA provides many of the residential and

         21  non-residential services.

         22                 Certainly the Police Department, who

         23  as you know, has a very large unit of over 300

         24  police officers that are housed in precincts

         25  throughout the City as domestic violence prevention
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          2  officers, and the work that they do to follow up and

          3  do home visits after an incident has taken place.

          4                 The Department of Corrections, the

          5  Department of Probation, the Department of ACS,

          6  Children Services, is certainly a critical agency.

          7  Health and Hospitals. The entry point of victims

          8  into the City is a broad one, and we recognize that

          9  victims may choose to go into a hospital as opposed

         10  to report. They may decide that their injury is

         11  taken care of, so to the extent that we're able to

         12  provide services to victims that choose the various

         13  entry points, we're working to collaborate and to

         14  work with all these agencies.

         15                 The Department of Health, the

         16  Department of Homeless Services, Criminal Justice

         17  Coordinator's Office, certainly in terms of the

         18  courts and the District Attorney's Office.

         19                 The Department for the Aging. One of

         20  the concerns we had when we met and the Mayor met

         21  with the heads of these 14 agencies, probably two

         22  weeks after my appointment, to talk about the

         23  importance of this issue, was the Commissioner for

         24  the Department of Aging very much expressing his

         25  concern and my concern, as well, about elder abuse,
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          2  and how the City can best respond to the issue of

          3  elder abuse. And we've been working with the

          4  Department for the Aging in trying to develop

          5  programs that certainly look at issues of

          6  intervention and prevention and education.

          7                 The Board of Education. One of the

          8  concerns that we have is certainly violence that

          9  happens to teenagers and those who are involved in

         10  relationships at a younger age, and teenage

         11  relationship violence, and looking to how we can

         12  better go into schools and educate young people

         13  about how to have healthy relationships.

         14                 I think that's very, very critical in

         15  trying to, if you will, stop the cycle, or intervene

         16  in the cycle of violence. That's it's not only

         17  intervention, it's not only service delivery, but it

         18  has to be education as well, and it has to be

         19  prevention.

         20                 I don't know if that's the 14, but

         21  there are 14. I can provide you with the list.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: It's a pop

         23  quiz, right?

         24                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: But it's 14.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: It's very
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          2  informative.

          3                 And some of the questions, and I will

          4  do it on the second round, is in dealing with HHC,

          5  it's very difficult because I know that there is a

          6  level of confidentiality that must be expressed when

          7  a domestic violence, her first response will be, of

          8  course, to take care of the ailments that have now

          9  been bestowed upon her, and the amount of social

         10  workers that are actually in the hospital deal with

         11  the victims that come in, and, two, the Board of

         12  Education.

         13                 Some of the people that are

         14  victimizing the victims, how do you hide the

         15  children? Let's just say they're savvy enough to

         16  look for their children as they're looking for, and

         17  I use women because I'm chair of the Women's Issues,

         18  and she's now gone to one of your safe havens, how

         19  do you sort of divert that in terms of a child

         20  enrolling in school? Or is there an educational

         21  system that's there and set up in sort of these

         22  homes?

         23                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: There is, and

         24  I'll let Commissioner Noel talk to that process.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER NOEL: Good
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          2  afternoon.

          3                 In terms of our shelters, families

          4  that move into the secure locations are surrounded

          5  with a wealth of services to address their needs,

          6  and one of them is really looking at the children

          7  and what's going on with them.

          8                 So, not only do they provide

          9  counseling and children's programming, and this is

         10  therapeutic programming that we're talking about, as

         11  well as child care as necessary, they work with the

         12  family to move the child to an appropriate school

         13  away from where the other community or the batterer

         14  might be, or if it's necessary to facilitate

         15  something there, the shelters do that, again, on a

         16  case-by-case basis in terms of what is good for that

         17  family, and those children. Okay?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Is there sort

         19  of a protective umbrella or flag that goes up to

         20  protect the child if he's relocated from a Brooklyn

         21  household to a Bronx household, there's a system set

         22  up in the Board of Education?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER NOEL: We have

         24  worked out procedures with the Board of Education to

         25  flag those cases so that if the batterer for any

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            68

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  reason calls and says, you know, I'm looking for my

          3  son or my child, those cases are flagged, and the

          4  information on those children are not disclosed to

          5  anyone without proper authorization. And that is

          6  done at the district level in each of these

          7  communities. It's not handled locally by the school.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. Last

          9  question. If they walk into Kings County, if they

         10  walk into Coney Island Hospital, Woodhull, Harlem,

         11  what have you, how many social workers are there for

         12  this victim?

         13                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: The City has 11

         14  domestic violence social workers.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Eleven?

         16                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: Eleven. At the

         17  emergency rooms.

         18                 Part of what we're trying to do in

         19  our work with HHC is the importance in screening,

         20  not just to have these 11 individuals but also the

         21  screening process that takes place when somebody

         22  comes into an emergency room, so it's the nurse,

         23  it's the doctors, it's anyone who is going to see

         24  that individual to try to really ascertain whether

         25  their injuries are a result of a domestic violence
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          2  incident.

          3                 To really try to encourage that

          4  victim to avail themselves of further services, and,

          5  you know, including obviously filing a police report

          6  or obtaining an order of protection or going

          7  further.

          8                 There are also instances in which

          9  right from the hospitals, the hospitals will call

         10  the hot line or will access shelter and have the

         11  victim put into a secure location because the victim

         12  discloses that they're in fact there as a result of

         13  injuries.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Do you think

         15  11 is a strong, or a number that is going to satisfy

         16  the need of victims that walk into the hospitals?

         17                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: No, clearly we

         18  could use more social workers at that end, but part

         19  of the whole arena of the medical community is to

         20  get everybody on board, and everyone who is in

         21  contact with an individual coming into a hospital

         22  needs to be trained and needs to be mindful about

         23  screening for domestic violence.

         24                 And we currently have a grant from

         25  the Department of Health that will allow us to
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          2  assess and ascertain how victims experience the

          3  health system. That's an area that we have some

          4  concerns and we're going to explore that.

          5                 Particularly in prenatal clinics, we

          6  know very well, unfortunately, that women are very

          7  much at risk for domestic violence during pregnancy,

          8  and we're working in collaboration particularly, we

          9  have a pilot program going in the Borough of

         10  Brooklyn, to work with prenatal clinics to try to

         11  identify and to try to see that when a victim or a

         12  woman comes into a prenatal clinic, that there is

         13  information and there is awareness and that they can

         14  feel that this is a place that they can obviously

         15  share their situation and get some assistance for

         16  themselves and for their child.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I agree, and

         18  I'm glad that you're on the job. And as I talk to

         19  advocates, and we even talk about how we deal with

         20  the hospital situation with the rape kits, and, you

         21  know, these things that give sort of targets or

         22  pointers that domestic violence might be occurring

         23  in a home, I think we've made progress but there's

         24  still a lot more work to be done, and we look

         25  forward to working with you on that.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: Likewise. Thank

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Council Member

          6  Yassky.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

          8  much, Mr. Chair.

          9                 I will restrict my questions to

         10  Intro. 107 that I sponsor, that's my primary

         11  interest, since I'm not a member of the Committee I

         12  won't intrude on the rest.

         13                 But I just do want to voice my

         14  strong, strong support to what you have proposed

         15  here in proposed Intro. 120-A. Having heard the

         16  concerns of the Administration, I must say I remain

         17  100 percent persuaded that what you have proposed is

         18  appropriate, but wise and just, that the important

         19  thing is to make sure that folks are protected. And

         20  let's also, at the same time, the wheels of justice

         21  turning to make sure that justice is done for the

         22  offender, but I don't see any conflict there at all.

         23  So, I just want to voice my strong support there.

         24                 Just a couple of quick questions.

         25                 Commissioner Jimenez, you in your

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            72

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  testimony raised the same concern about 107 that you

          3  did about 120-A, that somehow it might discourage

          4  women from reporting the crime to the police if they

          5  were to be protected under this sort of

          6  anti-discrimination provision. I'm just not sure I

          7  get that. I mean, I don't see why how saying to a

          8  woman if you go and try and get an apartment, that

          9  the landlord can't deny you that apartment because

         10  they're worried that your ex-boyfriend is going to

         11  come around and harass you, I don't see how that

         12  would, in any way, discourage a woman from also at

         13  the same time reporting the abuse to the police.

         14                 Am I understanding your concern

         15  correctly, or your testimony?

         16                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: No. The concern

         17  -- and I'll defer to the Human Rights Commissioner

         18  to explain this further, but the concern on this

         19  particular bill is the burden that is being placed

         20  to determine whether or not the individual is, in

         21  fact, a victim of domestic violence.

         22                 Would you like to add to that?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: Again,

         24  as the testimony stated, it puts the burden on the

         25  employer or the landlord to determine whether or not
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          2  someone is a victim. It doesn't spell out what a

          3  victim of domestic violence is clearly.

          4                 I'm not sure that addresses your

          5  question.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: You just said,

          7  again, Commissioner Jimenez, in your testimony, that

          8  this flies in the face of efforts to encourage

          9  victims to report crimes of domestic violence.  That

         10  was the only part I wanted to get at there, because,

         11  again, it just does not seem to me that there is any

         12  -- it's on page eight of your testimony. I don't

         13  see any conflict between -- I don't see any way in

         14  which Intro. 107 would discourage women or fly in

         15  the face of efforts to encourage women from

         16  reporting abuse.

         17                 As to the concern that you just

         18  raised, the burden. I believe the burden in any

         19  litigation would be on the plaintiff to establish --

         20  you know, the remedy for this would be a woman who

         21  has suffered the double victimization of abuse in

         22  the home and then discrimination in the workplace

         23  or in the residential marketplace, the burden would

         24  be on her to go to prove that she had suffered that

         25  and to seek redress.
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          2                 I don't think the burden really is on

          3  the employer or the landlord in any meaningful way.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: In the

          5  practical situation, though, where a victim is going

          6  to his or her employer and asking for an

          7  accommodation, wouldn't it be better to make it

          8  specific and clear when someone does fall under the

          9  protections of the law so that maybe we never even

         10  get to the point of having to litigate and having

         11  the victim have to prove in court there was a

         12  violation.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Would you

         14  propose then to change this to say that it would

         15  apply only to people who have orders of protection,

         16  or something like that? Is that the proposal? To be

         17  honest with you, I don't totally understand your

         18  concern.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: It's

         20  not the proposal with regard to being clearer on

         21  what the definition of a victim of domestic violence

         22  is, no.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Intro. 107

         24  uses the existing legal definition of domestic

         25  violence and stalking. I think it was drafted that
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          2  way and it made a lot of sense to me to use the

          3  existing standards which have a whole body of case

          4  law so people, you know, rather than quibble again

          5  over what the definitions are.

          6                 So, I don't think -- it sounds like

          7  your problem is not with the definition, but it's

          8  with how somebody is to establish that in a

          9  particular case; is that right?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: The

         11  problem is with the definition being specific. I

         12  don't propose that the definition of a victim of

         13  domestic violence is someone that has an order of

         14  protection. That's not the proposition.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: All right,

         16  this is my last question. How would you change the

         17  bill then to remedy the concern?

         18                 Is there any way you would change the

         19  bill to remedy your concern?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: With

         21  regard to documentation, I would request that the

         22  bill treat the victim of domestic violence similarly

         23  to the way the law treats someone seeking a

         24  reasonable accommodation for disability. And that

         25  requires the person to request the accommodation,
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          2  and it requires the person in most instances to

          3  provide some sort of documentation or justify the

          4  need for the accommodation.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: There has been

          6  in effect for two years, one year, a law that

          7  prohibits employers from discriminating on the basis

          8  of history of domestic violence.

          9                 In other words, you cannot, it's

         10  already now law, and has been for a year or two,

         11  that you can't be fired because you're a victim of

         12  domestic violence. Am I correct?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: That is

         14  correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And that does

         16  not require victims to show any sort of proof that

         17  you're talking about; is that correct?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: The

         19  legislation does not. That is correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Has there been

         21  any problems with that?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: There

         23  haven't been any problems. There have only actually

         24  been four complaints filed.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: With

          3  the Commission. And that is a protected class of

          4  individuals. And in three of those four situations,

          5  the aggrieved person, the victim, also had other

          6  problems, I mean basically other disabilities that

          7  arose from the domestic violence and it was

          8  basically treated by the Commission in a similar

          9  fashion to a disability request for a reasonable

         10  accommodation.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So, if I

         12  understand that, there have not been any problems

         13  with administering the existing law under which

         14  there is no requirement that somebody go have an

         15  actual order of protection before they qualify for

         16  protection under the bill, under the

         17  anti-discrimination law, right?

         18                 I mean, that's not something that's

         19  been a problem yet.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: And

         21  we're not suggesting that a person be required to

         22  have an order of protection. The testimony suggested

         23  possibly an order of protection, police report,

         24  Criminal Court complaint or even some sort of

         25  affidavit from a qualified advocate.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MULQUEEN: Thank

          4  you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          6  Council member, for your illuminating questions.

          7                 Before I call upon Council Member

          8  Seabrook and Council Member Quinn, I'd like to

          9  acknowledge the presence of our good friend from

         10  Brooklyn, Council Member Yvette Clarke. Welcome.

         11                 Council Member Larry Seabrook.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman.

         14                 And, Commissioner, just a couple of

         15  questions that I have. One that I guess is a

         16  clarification, because of what Councilman Yassky

         17  raised the issue of that which is in a statute which

         18  defines the purpose of this emergency shelter. And

         19  in this definition of what the state puts in the

         20  statute, it's very clear that it says nothing about

         21  documentation. If we read the law, it doesn't talk

         22  about documentation, it talks about providing

         23  emergency shelter for those fleeing and who have

         24  escaped domestic violence. So, it doesn't give you

         25  the definition of domestic violence, or its
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          2  criteria, it talks about providing emergency service

          3  for those escaping domestic violence.

          4                 So, based upon that, which is the

          5  State's definition of what is mandated for HRA, this

          6  is an emergency situation, this is not permanent

          7  housing, is it?

          8                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: No, it's not

          9  permanent houses, it's emergency situations, yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: This is an

         11  emergency situation, and this is people who are

         12  fleeing, and domestic violence could be final,

         13  unless you escape. It could be the end. So, this

         14  emergency that is in statute for those who are

         15  fleeing, is there a problem now with providing

         16  people with this emergency shelter? There has been

         17  people who have not met what you consider the

         18  requirements of or definition of domestic violence

         19  that you have actually said that you are here and

         20  you should not be here because you have not met the

         21  criteria; has that happened?

         22                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: I'm going to

         23  have Commissioner Noel answer that.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER NOEL: Forgive me,

         25  but I just want to make sure that I am answering

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            80

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  your question, Council Member. Could you please

          3  restate the question, because along the way I think

          4  I might have lost the train of thought.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: In this

          6  emergency situation, because it seems that this is a

          7  temporary situation, and this bill says that people

          8  who are actually fleeing need this emergency and

          9  that the documentation is not there, sometimes they

         10  can't have it, sometimes it's destroyed, so,

         11  therefore, there's a question about accepting these

         12  people. So, there's this whole sense of how do you

         13  substantiate this emergency or this domestic

         14  violence.

         15                 So, has there been a problem in the

         16  past of people not having this documentation that

         17  have been turned away? And has there been in the

         18  past people who actually have been able to obtain

         19  this emergency housing and actually you found that

         20  it was fraudulent situations?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER NOEL: Okay,

         22  Council member, I'd like to speak to the shelter

         23  issue, okay?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Okay.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER NOEL: So, let's
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          2  start with that.

          3                 In terms of accessing shelter and

          4  accessing services, domestic violence emergency

          5  services, domestic violence emergency shelter,

          6  documentation is not required. It is not required.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Okay.

          8                 So, this bill actually says exactly

          9  what you're saying, that it's not a requirement.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER NOEL: This bill

         11  says -- you know, again, I don't want to paraphrase

         12  or whatever what the bill says, but basically what

         13  I'm espousing is that in the process of doing an

         14  assessment for an individual for services, emergency

         15  services, it is often necessary to ask a variety of

         16  questions, one of which may include, do you have an

         17  order of protection; do you have a police report?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER NOEL: However, it

         20  is not required to access the service.

         21                 Do we ask in the process of an

         22  intake? Yes, we might.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Is there a

         24  central registry that a person who comes to you,

         25  that you can actually say on the spot that this
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          2  person has filed and has an order of protection or a

          3  police complaint that it's cross-referenced with the

          4  central system?

          5                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: The Police

          6  Department and law enforcement agencies, the courts,

          7  have access to the registry, and HRA does not at

          8  this juncture.

          9                 HRA does not have access to the

         10  registry of orders of protection. Its access that

         11  comes to the Police Department.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Right. But

         13  wouldn't that make sense to have -- not any

         14  reflection on you, but if a person in an emergency

         15  situation, and even in cases of life and death

         16  situations, because domestic violence has been

         17  proven to be life and death situations under the

         18  circumstances, that there is a central registry that

         19  triggers this off that has the relationship with the

         20  Police Department, and this service in particular

         21  that says that you can punch this up and find out,

         22  so it eliminates a lot of the red tape or anything

         23  else.

         24                 I mean, it would seem to me that that

         25  would be one way of solving that problem.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: You know, it

          3  makes absolute sense, as you just stated it, they

          4  don't have access to it, and the registry is not

          5  controlled by the City.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I understand

          7  that, but the Police Department is a part of the

          8  City, and they have access to this, and, so,

          9  therefore, there has to be a relationship with that

         10  agency in order to deal with this problem.

         11                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: You're

         12  absolutely correct. And one of the things that my

         13  office is looking at and working at is the issue of

         14  how information sharing takes place and how systems

         15  talk to each other. And this is an issue that we'll

         16  look into.

         17                 You know, the Police Department just

         18  started to have their database, domestic incident

         19  reports put in a database, a central database, so

         20  there's access to those 230,000 DIRs that we spoke

         21  about, and that system is being connected to

         22  Probation and to the District Attorney's Office. And

         23  this is one of those areas or issues that we'll be

         24  working with with the Criminal Justice Coordinator,

         25  but you're absolutely right, if we extend that, that
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          2  we can develop sharing of information, we'll do

          3  that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Since we're

          5  a little pressed for time, I'm going to allow

          6  others.

          7                 Thank you very much, Commissioner.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          9  Commissioner. Yes, we do have a little bit of a time

         10  pressure. The next panel has some time problems, so

         11  we're going to have two more members who have

         12  questions.

         13                 I would like to make a final

         14  announcement. For anyone who wants to sign up to

         15  testify who has not yet done so, please sign up with

         16  the Sergeant-At-Arms in the back.

         17                 Two more members have questions for

         18  the current panel.

         19                 Council Member Quinn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Just in the

         21  interest of time I'll defer. Mine were basically

         22  along the line with Council Member Yassky regarding

         23  what type of definition or threshold the

         24  Administration was looking for related to the

         25  housing discrimination. But he basically covered it.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 Council Member Stewart.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chair. I have a simple question, Commissioner.

          8                 In your testimony you have that you

          9  were mandated to combat domestic violence and to

         10  formulate policies and programs relating to all

         11  aspects of domestic violence. What do you have as a

         12  policy, or what are you doing for those people who

         13  might have filed their papers? Those immigrants who

         14  filed their papers and are waiting and because of

         15  the domestic violence there's a problem. They're

         16  afraid to come forth, they're afraid to testify

         17  against their spouse or whatever, or they're afraid

         18  to do anything; what type of policy do you have in

         19  assisting these folks who are having this type of

         20  problem?

         21                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: In my testimony

         22  I talked about a law enforcement collaboration

         23  project that we have with the New York City Police

         24  Department, but that the issue certainly permeates

         25  to other agencies, as well, as it relates to
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          2  immigrant communities and those that might be

          3  concerned about coming forward and accessing

          4  services. And we're certainly going to work very

          5  hard to go out into diverse communities and

          6  immigrant communities and share information and talk

          7  about the many services that in fact are available

          8  for someone, even if they don't have, even if

          9  they're not documented.

         10                 HRA provides a whole host of services

         11  to someone who is not a documented resident, and

         12  right now through Vower (phonetic) there are

         13  opportunities in which someone who is a victim of

         14  domestic violence can apply for a U Visa, and can

         15  get assistance in terms of becoming a permanent

         16  resident.

         17                 So, there's a whole host of changes

         18  that have taken place that we want to make sure that

         19  every immigrant community is aware of. The barrier

         20  to some services are very real, and we recognize

         21  that. Certainly there is no barrier to shelter.

         22  Anyone can come into a shelter, there is no need for

         23  a documentation in terms of one resident

         24  requirement.

         25                 So, I think it has to do with more
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          2  about all the agencies, my office, everyone getting

          3  out there and sharing this information and making

          4  sure the communities are aware of the services that

          5  are available to someone, even in a situation which

          6  they might not be documented residents.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Have you ever

          8  thought about having some sort of a forum, awareness

          9  forum, to educate --

         10                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: Absolutely.

         11  Absolutely. And we are doing that, and the City, not

         12  just during October, which is Domestic Violence

         13  Prevention Month, will be hosting a whole array of

         14  forums and conferences to get some of this

         15  information out, but it's something that we will do

         16  continuously.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         19  Council Member.

         20                 I want to thank the panel. Obviously,

         21  we have some areas of respectful disagreement. I

         22  hope we'll be able to work them through in terms of

         23  this legislation in general. But, again, we're very

         24  appreciative for the work you do and we look forward

         25  to working together.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER JIMENEZ: Thank you. And

          3  likewise, we look forward to working with you, too.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Good.

          5                 The next panel that's coming in, and,

          6  again, we're going to hear now from some people who

          7  have, unfortunately, firsthand experience with the

          8  issue of domestic violence, and I think their

          9  testimony is the most crucial as to what is

         10  happening in the real world of this issue.

         11                 So, let me call forward two witnesses

         12  who have asked to remain anonymous. We will simply

         13  refer to them as "Ms. A" and "Ms. N," and it's very

         14  important that we protect confidentiality in this

         15  instance. And we will also call forward Steve Banks

         16  of the Legal Aid Society, and Laurel Tumarkin of

         17  HELP USA.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Mr. Chair?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Can I be

         21  excused for the Democratic Caucus downstairs?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes,

         23  absolutely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Please rejoin
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          2  us when you're free afterwards.

          3                 Just as an FYI, as we're getting

          4  organized here, unfortunately there is a Democratic

          5  Caucus meeting meeting simultaneously, so some of my

          6  colleagues will be rejoining us in a bit.

          7                 I want to thank the witnesses who

          8  have come forth again.

          9                 If Laurel Tumarkin of HELP USA is

         10  here, please join the panel as well.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I want to thank

         12  all of our witnesses, but especially the two whose

         13  identities we want to protect today. It takes

         14  immense bravery and concern for your fellow human

         15  beings to come forward and to tell your stories, and

         16  we are very, very appreciative that you've done so.

         17                 And if the other panel members

         18  wouldn't mind, I'd like to ask a few questions just

         19  to open up, of these two witnesses in particular,

         20  just depart from our usual approach and I'd like to,

         21  rather than just ask for the formal testimony, ask a

         22  few questions. There also is formal testimony that

         23  will be entered into the record. So, I just want all

         24  of our witnesses to know that any written testimony

         25  automatically becomes part of the record of the City
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          2  Council, the permanent record, and your verbal

          3  testimony as well. So, we really, really appreciate

          4  that you've done this, and, again, I want to say on

          5  behalf of all New Yorkers, we commend you and thank

          6  you for your bravery.

          7                 Let me ask Ms. A first, and, again,

          8  we will refer to these two witnesses as Ms. A and

          9  Ms. N: Ms. A, if you could just speak about your

         10  personal situation, the incidents that occurred in

         11  your case, and how you dealt with them.

         12                 MS. A: My 15-month-old child and I

         13  are homeless and survivors of domestic violence.

         14                 Mrs. A is not my real name, as the

         15  City knows me and about my case. I want the City

         16  Council to know about what is happening to families

         17  like mine who need domestic violence help from the

         18  EAU.

         19                 By brother suffers from mental

         20  illness. When he does not take his medication he

         21  hears voices and thinks people are stealing his

         22  things.

         23                 When I lived with him during the last

         24  year, he had became abusive towards me.

         25                 Last September, when I was getting
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          2  ready to go to work, he became angry because he

          3  believed I stole his cigarettes from him, even

          4  though I don't smoke.

          5                 He kicked my door open, pushed me

          6  down on the floor and banged my head on the floor.

          7                 I was afraid he would become violent

          8  again, so after a few weeks I went to the EAU for

          9  help, last October.

         10                 I went to Domestic Violence Office at

         11  the EAU and was told I should go back where I was

         12  living, with my brother and my mother, because my

         13  brother was a family member and not a partner.

         14                 I thought that I had no alternative,

         15  so I went back to live there. The past April, my

         16  brother snapped and was violent again. He hit me and

         17  my daughter and split my lip. He kicked me and my

         18  child and beat me.

         19                 It was so bad that the police had to

         20  come and I moved out. He was my brother but I was so

         21  afraid to stay there with him.

         22                 I tried to get help through the

         23  City's Domestic Violence Hot Line but they said that

         24  there was no space for me, for us, me and my

         25  daughter.
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          2                 I stayed with some friends

          3  temporarily until this week, but they could no

          4  longer keep me.

          5                 I went to the EAU on Monday, because

          6  I had no place else to go. I went back to Domestic

          7  Violence Office to the EAU, I was told because my

          8  abuser is my brother, I am not eligible for a

          9  shelter or assistance.

         10                 I was afraid to go back to live with

         11  him, so I stayed at the EAU. I waited at the EAU

         12  office all Monday and all Tuesday. Each night my

         13  15-month-old daughter and I went to an overnight

         14  shelter placement where we could sleep for a few

         15  hours. On Wednesday some Legal Aid representative at

         16  the EAU spoke with my supervisor for the City

         17  Domestic Violence Office at the EAU.

         18                 After that the City agreed that my

         19  child and I are survivors of domestic violence and

         20  now we were eligible -- now we were going to get the

         21  help we need.

         22                 I hope that other families will not

         23  have to go through what I have been through.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very,
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          2  very much.

          3                 I know that was very difficult, but

          4  you gave extremely eloquent and important testimony.

          5                 I just want to ask you for a moment,

          6  it's so troubling to hear, when you talk about the

          7  many times you reached out for help and it wasn't

          8  available to you. I want to note we all feel such

          9  appreciation to the Legal Aid Society, because they

         10  were there for you.

         11                 MS. A: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: But literally

         13  I'm finding this so troubling, that the first time

         14  when you went in, when you said that the person who

         15  had abused you was a family member, didn't happen to

         16  be a husband, for example, but was a different

         17  relative, that you were told that somehow that

         18  wasn't domestic violence?

         19                 MS. A: They said that was not

         20  domestic violence, that family arguments, that was

         21  not domestic violence.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And you told

         23  them that you felt you were in danger?

         24                 MS. A: I felt in danger and unsafe,

         25  for my daughter also.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And your small

          3  child.

          4                 Did anyone you spoke to say, then we

          5  have another way, we'll help you. Let's do that

          6  right away?

          7                 MS. A: No. I was denied. So, I had to

          8  go back there and the domestic violence happened

          9  again.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: There is no

         11  question that, you know, they understood that this

         12  could have been in effect, and I'm so sorry to say

         13  this, because you're such a brave person, but it

         14  could have been a life and death situation, and they

         15  understood that?

         16                 MS. A: Yes. Yes. I told them, because

         17  at one point he had picked up something and hit me

         18  with it. It was a broom. He picked it up and hit me

         19  with it, and he kept on hitting me. And I told them

         20  everything, I wrote it down and I told them

         21  everything, and they said that's a family dispute,

         22  it could be resolved.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And when you

         24  called the Domestic Violence Hot Line, and we spoke

         25  earlier in this hearing about the fact that
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          2  tragically we know there are not enough shelter

          3  spaces available, but obviously we expect that hot

          4  line to help in any other way. When they said they

          5  didn't have a space, what did they tell you you

          6  could do?

          7                 MS. A: They told me they didn't have

          8  a space, try the EAU. And that's what I did. I tried

          9  the EAU. I kept on calling the hot line, they said

         10  no space, try the EAU, and they're telling me that

         11  I'm not eligible.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Before you were

         13  able to find some help from the Legal Aid Society,

         14  do you feel that there was anyone representing the

         15  City who would make sure you were safe no matter

         16  what?

         17                 MS. A: No. I tried to go through the

         18  system, and it's like the system is not working for

         19  me, although I really need the help. It was like I

         20  feel unsafe, in the EAU I feel unsafe. I just feel

         21  unsafe everywhere I go.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, for that

         23  whole time you never knew what might happen?

         24                 MS. A: No.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, thank
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          2  you. We may have some other questions for you during

          3  this panel.

          4                 Again, this is such important

          5  testimony, thank you, again, for being with us.

          6                 Let me also, I want to ask of Ms. N

          7  -- again, you're welcome to read the testimony and

          8  then I'll also want to ask you some questions about

          9  your experience.

         10                 MS. N: My name is Miss N. My two

         11  children, aged four and one, and I am a survivor of

         12  domestic violence.

         13                 Ms. N is not my real name, but the

         14  City is aware of my situation. I want the City

         15  Council to know about my situation because I do not

         16  want other families to go through what we have

         17  experienced.

         18                 My husband and the father of my

         19  children have been abusing and harassing me since

         20  our children were born.

         21                 He drinks, and when he gets drunk he

         22  is verbally abusive towards me. He calls me stupid,

         23  puts me down. My ex-boyfriend tried to kill me with

         24  a knife and hit me. My husband said that it's the

         25  way that I deserve to be treated.
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          2                 About a year ago I could not take

          3  this abuse anymore, and I was afraid of what he

          4  might do to us when he is drunk.

          5                 I called the City Domestic Violence

          6  Hot Line, and I was told that there was no space

          7  available in the domestic violence shelter for us.

          8                 So, I stayed with my husband, but

          9  things have been so bad that I needed to take

         10  medication for depression. My oldest child is also

         11  hyperactive and takes medication to stop him from

         12  being so aggressive.

         13                 We all asthma. Last weekend my

         14  husband was drunk on a Saturday, he became angry at

         15  me, he slapped me across the face with his open hand

         16  and hit me on the back of my head. He knocked me

         17  down on the bed, I was afraid and began to scream

         18  and cry. The neighbor must have heard the noise

         19  because the next thing that I knew was that the

         20  police came to our apartment.

         21                 They told my husband that he will be

         22  arrested if he did not stop doing what he had done.

         23                 After the police left, I was very

         24  scared. I kept the children with me in their bedroom

         25  and locked the door.
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          2                 The next day, Sunday, my husband went

          3  to work and we just stayed in the house. We spent

          4  Sunday night the same way that we spent Saturday

          5  night with the children locked in the bedroom. I

          6  knew that I could not go on like this so I went to

          7  the Family Court on Monday of this week to get an

          8  order of protection.

          9                 It took all day and I did not leave

         10  the Family Court until Monday evening.

         11                 I got a friend to serve the order of

         12  protection Monday night. Even with the order of

         13  protection I was still afraid.

         14                 On Monday night I called the City

         15  Domestic Violence Hot Line. Again I was told that

         16  there was no space for us in the domestic violence

         17  shelter.

         18                 I was told that the only thing I

         19  could do was go to the regular shelter at the EAU.

         20                 I had no choice, so I took my

         21  children to the EAU at about midnight on Monday.

         22                 For the rest of the night my older

         23  child slept on the floor. My youngest child slept in

         24  a playpen-type crib, and I sat on the bench.

         25                 On Tuesday, I was interviewed by the
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          2  City Domestic Violence Office at the EAU, called

          3  NOVA office. I was told that we did not need shelter

          4  because I had an order of protection. I knew that

          5  this was not true so I stayed at the EAU.

          6                 We waited all day on Tuesday at the

          7  EAU office. After 9:00 p.m., we were bused to a City

          8  shelter where we stayed until 7:00 a.m. Wednesday

          9  morning. When we were taken back to the EAU on

         10  Wednesday, I met the Legal Aid at the EAU and they

         11  spoke to the City Domestic Violence worker about my

         12  case.

         13                 After the Legal Aid spoke on our

         14  behalf, a domestic violence supervisor reconsidered

         15  our case. She agreed that we need help and should

         16  not go back to our apartment.

         17                 During our time at the EAU, my

         18  children and I were filthy and tired. I hope that

         19  other families do not have to go through what we

         20  did. If it was not for Legal Aid, we would not be

         21  getting the help that we needed.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Ms. N, again, I

         23  think it's extremely brave of you to be here, and

         24  your story is really shocking. You know, you're

         25  shining light on a problem here that this whole City
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          2  needs to understand.

          3                 I need to ask you a couple of

          4  questions to understand this better.

          5                 You know, you have a very, very tough

          6  situation you're facing on so many fronts, and, so,

          7  you call the Domestic Violence Hot Line, which is

          8  what we hope everyone in danger would do. Again,

          9  when you called, you were simply told there was no

         10  available shelter for you?

         11                 MS. N: There was no space available.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And did they

         13  offer you any kind of other assistance, or ideas or

         14  help besides go to the Emergency Assistance Unit?

         15                 MS. N: No. They just told me to go to

         16  the EAU.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Where do you

         18  live? I don't want to ask any detail, obviously,

         19  what borough?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, you had to

         21  go from Manhattan to --

         22                 MS. N: The Bronx.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: The Bronx to

         24  seek this.

         25                 Any other advice they gave you about

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            101

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  how to stay safe or how to protect your children?

          3                 MS. N: No. They just told me to go to

          4  the EAU. But yesterday they called and they denied

          5  me because I'm asthmatic and they wanted me to go up

          6  on a sixth-flight floor, and they said no, and since

          7  I know the Bronx, they denied me because of that

          8  too.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Did you feel,

         10  from the first time you called the Domestic Violence

         11  Hot Line did you feel in direct personal danger?

         12                 MS. N: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Did you feel

         14  your children were in danger?

         15                 MS. N: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And you finally

         17  felt you had no choice but to go to the Emergency

         18  Assistance Unit?

         19                 MS. N: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, when you

         21  got there, you're saying that someone actually

         22  listened to your case and then told you that it

         23  wasn't the kind of case they could help with?

         24                 MS. N: No. They said if I had an

         25  order of protection I didn't really need to be
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          2  there, that I could have went back home.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, because you

          4  didn't have one in your hand at that moment --

          5                 MS. N: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, you told

          7  them all the details of what happened to you, you

          8  didn't happen to have a piece of paper, and they

          9  still felt that that was not sufficient?

         10                 MS. N: Yes.

         11                 MR. BANKS: If I could assist? She

         12  actually has the order of protection and they still

         13  said even with the order of protection, that should

         14  protect you, go back to where you were.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I appreciate

         16  that clarification.

         17                 Ms. N, so, did the person you were

         18  dealing with, the City official, say why they

         19  thought an order of protection would be enough to

         20  protect you, and why that piece of paper could

         21  somehow magically protect you from violence?

         22                 MS. N: They said because if he was

         23  drinking before, and you didn't say nothing -- I

         24  told them because I was afraid, you know?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So you said,
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          2  even with the order of protection you might be in

          3  danger?

          4                 MS. N: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And what did

          6  the person from the City say about that?

          7                 MS. N: They didn't say really

          8  nothing. They just say, you know, go have a seat

          9  outside and then we'll review your case.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And then you

         11  went back to the EAU another time?

         12                 MS. N: I stayed overnight in a hotel

         13  and I had to go back the next day.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And you say

         15  that on the Tuesday you were interviewed by people

         16  involved with NOVA, and that's when they said that

         17  you did not need -- so, these were actually people

         18  who really understood protective violence and they

         19  still said an order of protection should be enough?

         20                 MS. N: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Unbelievable.

         22                 Let me go back to Ms. A for one more

         23  moment, because I'm confused by this.

         24                 Ms. A, did you feel that before you

         25  started working with the representative of Legal Aid
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          2  Society, do you feel any of the people you spoke to

          3  understood domestic violence?

          4                 MS. A: They understood domestic

          5  violence, and they still denied me. They said that

          6  this is not domestic violence, but they understood

          7  what is domestic violence.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, you said to

          9  them you have a 15-month-old child, that your

         10  brother had --

         11                 MS. A: Mental illness.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Mental illness.

         13  That you have been in danger.

         14                 MS. A: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: He had pushed

         16  you down.

         17                 MS. A: They don't consider that

         18  domestic violence. They consider that "family

         19  rivalry." That's exactly what they said.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: They said --

         21  say it again?

         22                 MS. A: They don't consider that

         23  domestic violence, they consider that "family

         24  rivalry," and it can always be worked out. But if he

         25  has a mental illness, I don't think that could be
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          2  worked out. He's on medication.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: In your

          4  testimony again, you say "he kicked open my door,

          5  pushed me down on the floor and banged my head on

          6  the floor." So, you told the City representative

          7  that your brother had literally smashed your head

          8  against the floor.

          9                 MS. A: He also kicked my daughter.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And hit your

         11  daughter?

         12                 MS. A: Yes. They said it was "family

         13  rivalry." Still they said that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Did they give

         15  you any other option?

         16                 MS. A: No. They said just go take it

         17  down to the EIU (sic) for the investigation, and

         18  that was it. They just denied me completely.

         19                 I spoke to them for about five to ten

         20  minutes, looked over my case, looked over my case

         21  and that was it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: And you think

         23  it was abundantly clear that not only you were in

         24  danger, but your young daughter might be in danger

         25  also?
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          2                 MS. A: They know I was in danger but

          3  they said they can't do nothing about that because

          4  it's family rivalry.

          5                 They said if I go to court and sit

          6  down with a judge they would probably consider it

          7  "family rivalry." They said I could do that, but if

          8  I do it, they're going to consider it family

          9  rivalry. That's exactly what they said.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I know we may

         11  have some other questions for both of you from other

         12  members of the panel. I just want to see if Council

         13  Member Boyland has any questions for Ms. A or Ms. N?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes.

         15                 I'm sorry for being late. We had

         16  several meetings going on. I felt this was extremely

         17  important to come here and listen to your testimony.

         18                 This is appalling that at this level,

         19  when we just had the Commissioner leave not five

         20  minutes ago, and we were praising her for actually

         21  having a system and working with 14 agencies, and

         22  tightening up the belt and making things move

         23  swifter and faster, now the story that you're

         24  telling is extremely appalling and my heart goes out

         25  to you.
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          2                 And what we want to try to do is to

          3  try to make sure that your situation does not happen

          4  to any other woman or child in New York City,

          5  throughout the United States, and to have someone

          6  say, as you're sitting in their presence -- because,

          7  obviously, to me, when you get to the point where

          8  you're either in the hospital, you're at the EAU

          9  unit, or you're sitting calling Safe Horizons,

         10  there's a point where you've now reached a level

         11  where it cannot -- you can't take it anymore, and

         12  you are saying that you were denied access to

         13  shelter based on the fact that you did not -- and

         14  refresh my memory, you did not have an order of

         15  protection, or you did not go to a hospital. They

         16  told you they didn't have space for you, or Steven,

         17  clarify for me, please.

         18                 MR. BANKS: If I could help clarify,

         19  Council Member, in the case of Ms. A, she was denied

         20  domestic violence assistance because the violence

         21  was committed by her brother, rather than by a

         22  partner.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Oh.

         24                 MR. BANKS: Notwithstanding what the

         25  legal requirements are, and Intro. 120-A would
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          2  remedy, by the way.

          3                 And in Ms. N's case, even though she

          4  had an order of protection, she was denied domestic

          5  violence assistance on the basis that because she

          6  had an order of protection she would be safe.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Appalling.

          8  Appalling.

          9                 MR. BANKS: Mrs. J was unable to

         10  attend, but her testimony is in this record, and she

         11  was denied for yet a third variation, which was that

         12  she had police reports and documentation that

         13  indicated she had gone to Criminal Court, and that

         14  the Criminal Court was seeking to get the abuser

         15  arrested, but she had no other documentation, and,

         16  so, she, too, was denied.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I wish the

         18  Commissioner had stayed to hear this, because this

         19  is extremely appalling, and my heart goes out to the

         20  families of these ladies and their children. And we

         21  will do the best that we can to ensure that this

         22  situation does not occur.

         23                 And to the best of our ability now,

         24  when working with them, Council Member, whatever we

         25  can do, please, we need to work together so cases
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          2  like this do not happen again.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let me ask one

          4  more question of our two witnesses. Here and again

          5  we want to respect your confidentiality.

          6                 The whole purpose of this hearing is

          7  to look at a couple of things that we can change

          8  about the law of New York City, and one of them is

          9  to try and make it easier for anybody who needs

         10  emergency shelter because they're a victim of

         11  domestic violence to get that shelter right away.

         12                 So, I'm going to ask it in very human

         13  terms, when you, Ms. A, when you spoke to the City

         14  officials on the Domestic Violence Hot Line or an

         15  Emergency Assistance Unit, this is before you worked

         16  with Legal Aid, did you feel that they believed you

         17  and they wanted to make sure you got shelter

         18  immediately?

         19                 MS. A: I felt that they believed me,

         20  but they didn't really think I needed the shelter.

         21  But I think they, like, believed that I was getting

         22  domestic violence, but like I said before, they said

         23  it's my brother and it could be worked out.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Do you believe

         25  that they wanted to give you the benefit of the
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          2  doubt and make sure you got protection right away?

          3                 MS. A: No.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Let me ask the

          5  same question to Ms. N.

          6                 When you spoke to people of, again,

          7  the Domestic Violence Hot Line and at the Emergency

          8  Assistance Unit, do you believe that they believed

          9  you had an immediate danger and they wanted to make

         10  sure you were safe right away?

         11                 MS. N: I don't believe they believed

         12  me.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Did you feel

         14  like the people you were talking to understood that

         15  it was their job to make sure you got to safety

         16  immediately?

         17                 MS. N: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Say it again?

         19                 MS. N: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Did you feel

         21  that they wanted to immediately get you to a

         22  situation of safety?

         23                 MS. N: No.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Council Member

         25  Boyland.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: My last

          3  question is, Ms. A, when your brother victimized

          4  you, did you return back to the situation? Did you

          5  return back to the home? You live together, I

          6  assume?

          7                 MS. A: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Did you

          9  return back?

         10                 MS. A: Yes. I had nowhere to go.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Incredible.

         12                 That's all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I'd like to now

         14  ask Steve Banks of the Legal Aid Society to speak on

         15  this.

         16                 And, Steve, I want to thank you for

         17  the work you've done on so many issues, but this is

         18  one literally of life and death, and it's so crucial

         19  that you're bringing this information forward.

         20  Please give us your sense of what's going on and

         21  what we should do about it?

         22                 MR. BANKS: We greatly appreciate the

         23  Committee's focus on this issue and the legislation,

         24  and particularly the support from you as the Chair

         25  of this Committee, and Council Members Boyland and
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          2  Yassky for their legislation.

          3                 Clearly, Intro. 120-A is an important

          4  piece of legislation. The Legal Aid Society, like

          5  the Council, is seeking a cooperative relationship

          6  with the Administration, and certainly taking the

          7  testimony provided by representatives of the

          8  Administration, the policies reflected in 120-A are

          9  policies that at that level the Administration seems

         10  to have no quarrel with, in terms of ensuring that

         11  in the case of Mrs. A, that although her situation

         12  involved non-partner violence under the provisions

         13  of 120-A, there would be no question that she would

         14  get assistance. The testimony from the City

         15  representatives was not to pose that type of an

         16  approach.

         17                 Similarly, in the case of Mrs. N, the

         18  policy of the Administration is not to say that

         19  someone with an order of protection should have to

         20  return to unsafe environment but should get help.

         21  And Mrs. J, who I said unfortunately is not here

         22  because of the lateness of when she was placed in

         23  shelter last night, certainly the City officials'

         24  testimony would be that someone like that, who had

         25  the indicia that she was in a dangerous circumstance
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          2  but didn't have an order of protection yet, but had

          3  evidence that she had sought the intervention of the

          4  police and the Criminal Court, certainly the

          5  Administration's policy would be that someone like

          6  that should get help.

          7                 The real problem here is the gap

          8  between stated policies and the realities for

          9  families like Mrs. A, and Mrs. N and their children

         10  and Mrs. J. I wish that I could tell you that these

         11  are atypical cases, and that the good news is that

         12  since their cases have been addressed now, that this

         13  isn't a problem.

         14                 I think, as the Committee knows, just

         15  over a year ago we testified before your predecessor

         16  committee where the witness also anonymously as Mrs.

         17  A, who testified almost exactly the same set of

         18  circumstances that these witnesses did concerning

         19  the gap between policy and reality at the Emergency

         20  Assistance Unit.

         21                 Part of the problem is the multiple

         22  agencies that are involved here. The Human Resources

         23  Administration operates the Citywide hot line.

         24  Families with domestic violence problems are

         25  encouraged through an admirable public education
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          2  campaign, with posters everywhere in the subways to

          3  call that hot line if they need help.

          4                 Candidly, the Mayor's Coordinator for

          5  Domestic Violence admits, though, that the requests

          6  for help and for shelter, by her estimation, are two

          7  to one to a request for every one that can be met. I

          8  think there's evidence before this Committee, and

          9  certainly evidence in the State Court litigation

         10  that we have involving homelessness and domestic

         11  violence. The evidence shows that the numbers of

         12  requests for shelter are in the thousands, and the

         13  numbers of available units for families in domestic

         14  violence shelter space are in the hundreds. So, the

         15  gap is a great one.

         16                 So, typically, families that call the

         17  hot line are unable to be provided with the help

         18  that they need immediately and are frequently simply

         19  deferred to the Department of Homeless Services'

         20  Emergency Assistance Unit.

         21                 There, in a case in which they say,

         22  their family says they're coming to the EAU because

         23  of domestic violence, they're sent to an HRA worker.

         24                 You have to see the office to believe

         25  it. There are two workers jammed into a work space
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          2  that's not much bigger than this table than we're

          3  sitting at now, and then people are interviewed in

          4  that room. There aren't supervisors for every shift

          5  up there, there's no night supervisor on-site. The

          6  overflow is sometimes met in a wide open area in the

          7  City's administrative offices up there.

          8                 On that environment, people are asked

          9  to tell the most intimate details of their

         10  experiences, in front of their children, I might

         11  add. And under these circumstances, despite the fact

         12  that State law and court orders prohibit both the

         13  Department of Homeless Services and HRA and the City

         14  overall from sending people back to live in places

         15  that are unsafe. The experiences that you hear today

         16  are all too common.

         17                 For those that would say the bill is

         18  unnecessary because it's already required, I think

         19  our experiences with the City Council over the years

         20  really convince us that in comparable situations in

         21  which there have been general state statutes and

         22  there have been court orders, the passage of a local

         23  law makes a tremendous difference in terms of

         24  ultimate compliance with what the legal standard

         25  should be.
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          2                 Again, your law only codifies what

          3  existing State regulations provide for. You're not

          4  asking the Administration to do something they're

          5  not already obligated to do, but by passing the

          6  legislation, you're sending a strong message to

          7  families like the N family and the A family and all

          8  of the similar situated families that the Council is

          9  going to enact a law that will make a difference in

         10  their lives, that's what we're here to do. We know

         11  that you do it very effectively, and this is a very

         12  critically important piece of legislation.

         13                 The additional fact that you'll need

         14  to consider in your general welfare roll as well is

         15  the impact of the failure to have sufficient

         16  domestic violence shelter space on the EAU situation

         17  in general.

         18                 Yesterday morning, for example, there

         19  were 47 families, including about 95 children,

         20  sleeping on the floor of the Emergency Assistance

         21  Unit office in violation of court orders and local

         22  law. The City is obligated and is going to be paying

         23  civil contempt fines for these kinds of violations.

         24                 There are other families bounced back

         25  and forth between single night, overnight

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            117

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  placements, like these families, and the Emergency

          3  Assistance Unit, again prohibited by court order and

          4  local law, the City is liable for civil contempt

          5  fines here too, and there is an ongoing court

          6  proceeding.

          7                 But the point that's important to

          8  focus on in terms of space, there are several

          9  hundred families in the municipal shelter system who

         10  are there because they're survivors of domestic

         11  violence, and there's no room for them anywhere

         12  else.

         13                 There are certainly many more

         14  families who are in the shelter system who the HRA

         15  program said you're not really a domestic violence

         16  survivor, but somehow or other they were ultimately

         17  sheltered.

         18                 But they're taking up precious,

         19  precious space that could be made available to stop

         20  those 90 children from having to sleep on the floor.

         21                 So, in addressing the problems of

         22  Mrs. N and Mrs. A, you can solve the problems of

         23  many other families.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 You know, I just wanted to respond to

          3  a crucial point you made related to why this is so

          4  necessary.

          5                 We had the Administration

          6  representatives here earlier, as you saw, and I find

          7  it interesting, I think, again, there are people

          8  acting very much in good faith, but when asked point

          9  blank can you guarantee that no one is being turned

         10  away, because, you know, of some problems of

         11  documentation or procedure, of course there was no

         12  City official who could say, no, we're sure of that.

         13  They are not sure of that. They admit they're not

         14  sure of this.

         15                 So, what I find astounding is, you

         16  know, we've made so much progress over the years, in

         17  terms of public safety, we've made so much progress

         18  in terms of stopping child abuse. We still have so

         19  much farther to go on both those fronts, but it

         20  feels like we're very far behind in stopping

         21  domestic violence. It feels like from what you're

         22  saying, and our two other witnesses, that we've only

         23  begun to do something to help people in an emergency

         24  situation. Somehow when a woman in particular comes

         25  forward in danger, the City is not jumping to
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          2  protect that woman. It's almost like, if you ran up

          3  to a police officer in a street and said, you know,

          4  there's someone coming after me with a gun, of

          5  course they'd get you in the squad car, but if you

          6  come up to a City official and say, there's someone

          7  in my own home who might do me harm, or has done me

          8  harm, somehow that's not enough to guarantee

          9  immediate action.

         10                 So, I appreciate your testimony, Mr.

         11  Banks, especially in terms of the needy. You can

         12  never go far enough in terms of making the law clear

         13  that it must instantly serve a person in need.

         14                 MR. BANKS: The risk is just too great

         15  here of harm, and we see it in Mrs. A's case where

         16  she was told to return, she did return and she was

         17  harmed again.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Council Member

         19  Boyland.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Let me just

         21  ask you a question.

         22                 Let's just walk through the steps

         23  from EAU through the transitional shelters, through

         24  dealing with the Department of Homeless Services,

         25  through New York City Housing Authority. And this
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          2  has been one of my issues.

          3                 If priority is supposed to be given

          4  to women that are in transitional shelters, to New

          5  York City Housing, and let me know if you're feeling

          6  the same way, meaning we know that there's a housing

          7  shortage. We know that there is a problem with us

          8  finding affordable housing, but do domestic violence

          9  victims get first priority in receiving permanent

         10  housing in New York City Housing Authority?

         11                 MR. BANKS: I'm going to give a brief

         12  answer to that question. I know that your time is

         13  limited.

         14                 But briefly, it's like the overall

         15  statement that the policy of the City is to help

         16  families like Mrs. N and Mrs. A. Yes, the policy of

         17  the City is to give a high, high priority --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right.

         19                 MR. BANKS: -- For permanent housing.

         20  But the reality is there isn't the systems in place

         21  to provide that. You could very well have a very

         22  effective rent subsidy program in place that would

         23  save a whole lot of money at the same time as

         24  meeting the needs of families like these families.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. Because
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          2  I assume you would not have a situation where

          3  children and mothers were on the floor, and the

          4  situation where situation Mrs. A and Mrs. N, they

          5  would have been able to move directly into that

          6  transitional shelter, if those transitional shelter

          7  families were moved into permanent housing.

          8                 MR. BANKS: That's correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: So, I think

         10  there needs to be a second level of discussion that

         11  needs to happen, again with the Commissioner, to

         12  pull those entities that she spoke about, those 14

         13  organizations that come together, departments that

         14  come together, and sort of have a better dialogue so

         15  this situation -- and I'm just trying to come up

         16  with solutions, as you speak, to how we can assist

         17  the mothers of the victims of domestic violence, and

         18  I'll leave it at that and we'll talk further.

         19                 MR. BANKS: We appreciate your

         20  concern.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: There's another

         23  member of the panel, I'd like to give her an

         24  opportunity to speak. Laurel Tumarkin of HELP USA.

         25  And I want to also thank HELP USA for amazing work
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          2  you do to serve people in need. So we appreciate

          3  your testimony today, as well.

          4                 And, again, I want to thank the other

          5  witnesses, Ms. A and Ms. N, for your extraordinary

          6  help to the City in providing your testimony today.

          7  Thank you both very much.

          8                 Ms. Tumarkin.

          9                 MS. TUMARKIN: Good afternoon. My name

         10  is Laurel Tumarkin, and I'm the Policy Analyst at

         11  HELP USA, the City's largest provider of housing and

         12  services for homeless families and individuals.

         13                 HELP contracts with both the

         14  Department of Homeless Services and Human Resources

         15  Administration to provide transitional housing and

         16  services for homeless clients and has thus developed

         17  an understanding of the needs of the homeless

         18  population as a whole, as well as the specialized

         19  needs of domestic violence survivors seeking

         20  shelter.

         21                 We at HELP applaud this Committee's

         22  efforts to protect survivors of domestic violence by

         23  removing barriers to emergency shelter.

         24                 It is critical that survivors who

         25  come forward seeking assistance receive the help
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          2  they need, rather than be denied for lack of

          3  documentary evidence of their abuse, or as a result

          4  of a wrongful determination of eligibility.

          5                 However, we fear that the removal of

          6  the barriers outlined in the "SAFE" bill is only one

          7  small step towards ensuring that survivors receive

          8  appropriate shelter and the services that they

          9  require.

         10                 Many domestic survivors in this City

         11  are currently forced to stay in Tier II family

         12  shelters that are meant for the general population,

         13  and which are not designed to accommodate domestic

         14  violence survivors, as are the specialized

         15  facilities which operate under contract with HRA.

         16                 This is evidenced by a research

         17  project conducted in fall of 2000 by the Research

         18  and Evaluation Committee of the Tier II Coalition, a

         19  membership organization which provides 70 percent of

         20  all emergency housing and related services to

         21  homeless New Yorkers.

         22                 This study, which describes various

         23  characteristics of families in the shelter system,

         24  included a finding that 48.8 percent of all homeless

         25  heads of households in the Tier II shelter system
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          2  were survivors of domestic violence.

          3                 In addition, more than 30 percent of

          4  all households, this is in the Tier II shelter

          5  system, indicated that domestic violence was the

          6  reason for their current episode of homelessness.

          7                 If we apply that percentage to

          8  today's homeless population, then there are 2,374

          9  families in the Tier II system who are in shelter

         10  due to domestic violence.

         11                 DHS' mandate is to provide emergency

         12  shelter for the homeless. It was not designed or

         13  intended to be a residential program for survivors

         14  and domestic violence.

         15                 As my colleague Nancy Nunziata will

         16  describe in her testimony, survivors of domestic

         17  violence have special service needs. These needs are

         18  for the most part not being met in the Tier II

         19  system.

         20                 During such time as the Tier IIs

         21  provide shelter to domestic violence survivors, the

         22  City should provide the Tier IIs with the resources

         23  necessary to meet the service needs of these

         24  clients.

         25                 This is just an interim measure,
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          2  however. The real solution is to expand the expert

          3  system designed to serve domestic violence

          4  survivors.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          7  much, Ms. Tumarkin. It's also very crucial, your

          8  helping to point out that we have to understand the

          9  problem of homelessness and he problem of domestic

         10  violence together.

         11                 At the same time, I want to take to

         12  hear the testimony of your colleagues on the panel.

         13  Even though they are related problems, a domestic

         14  violence victim faces such an immediate and

         15  potential fatal problem, and, yet, our policy has

         16  not caught up with that.

         17                 So, I appreciate that you're helping

         18  us to see how the pieces work together and I know

         19  you'll join us in trying to get the priorities where

         20  they should be on the health and safety first of

         21  people in immediate danger.

         22                 MS. TUMARKIN: Absolutely.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         24  much for your participation.

         25                 MS. TUMARKIN: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We have another

          3  panel coming up now, and this panel will speak

          4  especially to Council Member Yassky's bill, related

          5  to fighting discrimination against survivors.

          6                 The members of the panel are

          7  Annabelle Randolph, Rosa Schirripa, and Evelyn

          8  Cardona. Please join us.

          9                 Thank you all again. I know each of

         10  you has important personal stories to tell. We want

         11  to thank you. We want to say from the beginning how

         12  important it is that you're helping the people of

         13  New York City to understand this problem, and really

         14  appreciate what you're doing for all of us.

         15                 So, whoever would like to go first,

         16  just please introduce yourself and give us your

         17  testimony.

         18                 MS. CARDONA: My name is Evelyn

         19  Cardona, and I'm a survivor of domestic violence.

         20  I'm also the Executive Director of the North

         21  Brooklyn Coalition Against Family Violence, and I

         22  really couldn't contain myself in the seats because

         23  just to see the Commissioner walk out, all of the

         24  commissioners walk out before we spoke was a slap in

         25  the face to us.
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          2                 And then for them to say that, oh,

          3  you know, we can't -- she couldn't even say, Yolanda

          4  Jimenez, the 14 agencies that she has helping

          5  domestic violence.

          6                 I have personally made outreach to

          7  these agencies as a survivor and in a professional

          8  capacity as the Executive Director to tell them that

          9  we are willing to help them out.

         10                 We have a grassroots organization in

         11  North Brooklyn that is combatting domestic violence.

         12  Not once have I heard from them.

         13                 Let me just tell you about my

         14  experience. I've been a survivor now for over ten

         15  years, but it's just really embarrassing, and I was

         16  crying and I couldn't contain myself to see that

         17  we're moving back into the times of the Flintstones,

         18  like the Justins, I mean we're just back there

         19  again.

         20                 Ten years ago I lost my job because

         21  my batterer was stalking me. He was calling me at

         22  work, and my boss at that time said, you know, it

         23  looks like you're courting him. He broke my leg, I'm

         24  here on crutches, you know, it's not that I'm

         25  courting him. If I walk home with him, on my

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            128

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  crutches, mind you, he's going to take it out on me,

          3  and he's going to embarrass me in the middle of 34th

          4  Street.

          5                 Well, my boss thought that I was

          6  courting him. Every time the phone rang, and they

          7  would hang up, I got blamed for it anyway. It's your

          8  husband.

          9                 And I said, listen, it's not my

         10  husband. He's in jail. He cannot talk right now to

         11  me. Anyway, it didn't matter. I was asked to leave

         12  the agency ten years ago because it was better for

         13  the agency and the way they framed it was like,

         14  Evelyn, you know, we've helped you raise a family of

         15  four children, you know, you're a valuable asset to

         16  the organization, however, don't you want to protect

         17  us? You don't want to endanger our welfare. And of

         18  course, that's the same thing of the cycle of

         19  violence. They victimize you, you don't want to have

         20  anyone else hurt, so, yes, I left.

         21                 My abuse continued. Anyway I went to

         22  school and here I am the Executive Director of an

         23  agency and I fight to end domestic violence. But to

         24  see the Commissioner, once again, it's the same

         25  thing, to see them saying that, you know, Tracy, you
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          2  asked them, "what are the 14 agencies?" Dah, dah, I

          3  don't know.

          4                 I know where I get my funding from, I

          5  know who helps me, I know who doesn't help me, I

          6  know who the commissioners are, why can't they be

          7  held accountable to the same standards?

          8                 So, housing, the Commissioner also

          9  said, Yolanda Jimenez, we need to hold the batterers

         10  accountable. I can assure you that any victim that

         11  is placed in shelter and is safe will go to any

         12  extent to have her batterer held accountable, but

         13  how can we hold our batterers accountable when we're

         14  not safe? How?

         15                 Many times this woman that was

         16  speaking today, saying that her husband, or her

         17  brother, I'm sorry, her brother beat her. ACS is

         18  going to take that kid away. I hope she's going to

         19  be tracked. So, all these agencies that Ms. Jimenez

         20  is saying are there to help us are really there to

         21  revictimize us. The people that are put all the way

         22  up there do not have a clue on what is going on, and

         23  when we tell them that we're here to help them, it's

         24  like, oh, yeah, we'll get back to you. Yes, I'm

         25  called for press conferences to show how great my
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          2  program is, but, yet, where is the money to continue

          3  running?

          4                 We work, my caseworkers and myself

          5  work 80 hours a week. We don't get paid for that.

          6  You know, we continue to do it.

          7                 Domestic violence, you know, the

          8  housing, let's just talk about the housing issues.

          9  The law now is, I don't if it's the law, but it's

         10  the NYCHA regulations, the regulations are that you

         11  need two domestic incident reports. Okay, fine, he

         12  beat me up yesterday, so I'm going to go back and

         13  make sure he beats me up again so that I can meet

         14  your criteria, and they're still waiting another

         15  year.

         16                 It's ridiculous. I would love to get

         17  an undercover camera for us. I have a client that's

         18  been in a shelter over 15 months because it was a

         19  same sex issue, and her kids continue to come to me

         20  for counseling, and they call me "Mom Evelyn. When

         21  are you going to get us out of the shelter system?"

         22  They had a beautiful apartment that they had to

         23  leave across the street from the 83rd Precinct, the

         24  police failed to protect her. And, yet, she's still

         25  in the shelter system. It's ridiculous. It's just
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          2  ridiculous.

          3                 And many times at night I sit in bed

          4  crying literally, and I say, you know what? I'm just

          5  going to forget about domestic violence, I need to

          6  live. I need a real life. But how can I walk away

          7  knowing that there's still people like me that are

          8  not getting the services?

          9                 I was at an RFP today, a meeting,

         10  where the same commissioners were there, and, yet,

         11  if you look, they were saying for 100 victims we're

         12  going to give $168,000 a year, for you to service

         13  100 victims a month. You know, I have a master's and

         14  I was ready to get up and say, are you people -- do

         15  you know how to do the math here? How can we do

         16  these services? And, yet, I know we're not going to

         17  get the monies anyway, even though we're the ones

         18  doing the services. It's just ridiculous.

         19                 Today, and I'll end at this, because

         20  I know I was only asked to speak for two minutes,

         21  you know, David Yassky's person was telling me,

         22  Evelyn, you know, the stalking and all this stuff --

         23  and I was saying, you know what? Today I was meeting

         24  someone to go with me to the RFP and she was

         25  actually upset because I told her I would meet her
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          2  at work and she was planning for me to walk on

          3  Broadway, and she called my office, I said, well --

          4  she goes, don't you normally walk up Broadway? I'm

          5  like, hello, I take a different route every day. Ten

          6  years after. And it clicked on me, I said, "Jesus

          7  Christ, I'm still doing it." I still take a

          8  different route every single day, afraid that my

          9  batterer will find me.

         10                 Yet, I refuse to wear a mask. I

         11  refuse to say no, because I'm also proud to say that

         12  I still live and work in my community, and I have

         13  helped very precinct accountable for what happened

         14  to me.

         15                 And with that I'm going to hold it

         16  over to Annabelle, who basically started off with

         17  us.

         18                 And thank you for being here. Just

         19  one more thing. Can we hold these commissioners

         20  accountable for walking out on us? How dare they

         21  just walk out without hearing us?

         22                 MS. RANDOLPH: Hi. My name is

         23  Annabelle Randolph. I started out as a client in

         24  February of 2000 with the grassroots organization

         25  that Evelyn talks about.
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          2                 Two years later I'm out of shelter, I

          3  consider myself somewhat safe, but you know, it

          4  wasn't an easy road.

          5                 When I decided after four or five

          6  years to finally walk out on my batterer, I needed

          7  from my job two days to -- one, to continue, to

          8  renew my order of protection, and two, to move into

          9  shelter. I was told by my job that after serving

         10  them for two years, that they needed somebody that

         11  could be here for eight hours, and that if I wasn't

         12  that person, that I could no longer work for them.

         13  After generating almost half a million dollars in

         14  revenue from this company, I was basically told to

         15  walk.

         16                 Part of the education in domestic

         17  violence is that they teach you about financial

         18  abuse, and part of, you know, freeing yourself from

         19  financial abuse is having a job that you can go

         20  back, not counting on your batterer to pay for

         21  everything.

         22                 When I finally decided to leave, I

         23  was revictimized at my job, and I was told, you

         24  know, that they basically couldn't help me and that

         25  I needed to find somewhere else to go to.
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          2                 Some of the so-called safety systems

          3  in place I can attest to because I went through the

          4  shelter system, and one of the requirements to get

          5  into my shelter was that I have DOP, and that I had

          6  a police report.

          7                 I can attest to the fact that there

          8  are not enough pages on the police report to cover

          9  the extreme circumstances that I was in.

         10                 I can also attest to the fact that,

         11  yes, you're accepted into shelter, but you're

         12  constantly under the threat of having your child

         13  taken away by ACS.

         14                 An idea that I have would be to hold

         15  employers accountable and the same way you have a

         16  six-week maternity leave, you should have a week,

         17  you know, under some amendment or something, to just

         18  stay safe. I was willing to work to make up my time,

         19  and, you know, they basically walked away from me.

         20                 This is an important issue. This is a

         21  very important issue of job discrimination. And to

         22  conclude, I just want to say that domestic violence

         23  is a fire - it roars the loudest, it spreads the

         24  furthest and it spares the least.

         25                 MS. SCHIRRIPA: I, also like Evelyn,
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          2  am very, very disappointed that the City walked

          3  away, and being a victim of domestic violence for 18

          4  years, people always ask why, and sometimes it's for

          5  that same reason, because when you go and knock on

          6  the door, the door shuts, and you go to one agency

          7  and then another agency sends you to another agency

          8  and nobody holds hands to help you.

          9                 So, I wrote a little bit about my

         10  experiences of 18 years, but I'm very disappointed

         11  that the City doesn't hear what we're saying. And as

         12  a former worker of ACS, what Evelyn stated about the

         13  children, because I was a child protective

         14  specialist, is very true. And because I refused to

         15  do City agency's work the way they wanted for

         16  domestic violence victims, I was terminated from

         17  ACS.

         18                 So, when people first find out that

         19  I'm a victim of domestic violence, especially for 18

         20  years, their first reaction to me is, Rosa, you're

         21  so attractive, smart and a nice woman, why did you

         22  subject yourself to such cruel and inhumane

         23  treatment? It must be your low self-esteem, or

         24  perhaps you didn't know how to treat your husband.

         25                 I used to cry when I used to hear
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          2  this, not tears of shame, but tears of a mother

          3  whose two sons witnessed their mother being

          4  physically and emotionally abused.

          5                 As the attractive woman that has

          6  physical bruises that heal with time, and as a

          7  smart, intelligent woman whose emotional pain has

          8  never truly healed, I used to try to explain and

          9  justify my husband's actions and my non-actions.

         10  However, the main reasons I returned and stayed were

         11  always shelter and financial security for myself and

         12  my two sons.

         13                 Prior attempts to leave my husband

         14  always brought me down desolate paths, and for a

         15  moment today I would like the Committee members to

         16  imagine some of the roads of a victim of domestic

         17  violence.

         18                 Imagine how difficult it is to find

         19  an apartment as a single mother with two children,

         20  the need for a security deposit and a months' rent;

         21  references from your employer or old neighbors. The

         22  fear that goes through a domestic violence victim is

         23  that the references will discuss her history of

         24  domestic violence, and the landlord will not want to

         25  endure arguments, stalking and harassment from the
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          2  batterer.

          3                 Imagine going to a domestic violence

          4  shelter and being told that there's no room in your

          5  local shelter because you have two sons, and boys

          6  cannot stay with their mothers. If you wanted a

          7  shelter, you would have to relocate your sons to the

          8  Bronx.

          9                 Imagine, wiping your children's tears

         10  when they tell you that the only stable environment

         11  they have in their lives are their friends and

         12  supports from school.

         13                 How could a mother ask her sons to

         14  leave their house where they have every material

         15  possession a teenager desires, and ask them to share

         16  a room with strangers in a battered victims shelter?

         17                 Imagine your children asking you to

         18  buy new clothes or they want to go out with their

         19  friends, and as you wipe away their tears, and

         20  you're heart is breaking because you don't have

         21  enough money to pay the rent, your next paycheck is

         22  not due for three days.

         23                 Imagine when your employer asks you

         24  to work late and threatens you that you must pick

         25  your loyalties, either your job which represents
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          2  financial stability, or your personal life. You are

          3  forced to make the decision between staying late and

          4  keeping your job, and knowing that when you finally

          5  get home a beating will be awaiting you because

          6  you're late and dinner will not be ready.

          7                 Imagine when your boss asks about

          8  your bruises or the sick day that you have taken off

          9  to heal from the beating. The employer always

         10  worrying more about their productivity than the

         11  welfare of the victim.

         12                 Imagine when you lose your job you

         13  have no income, no medical insurance, no

         14  prescription coverage, no dental plan, and

         15  unemployment tells you the check will take three

         16  weeks to process.

         17                 Imagine the people at the welfare

         18  office, when you go down to get food stamps and

         19  other assistance you are turned away because you

         20  have a house that is partially owned by you, and,

         21  thus, you don't qualify for food stamps.

         22                 Try explaining to the people at

         23  welfare that you're fleeing an abusive situation,

         24  and you've left your home and your partner took all

         25  of the money out of the bank, and you don't have
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          2  family to help you.

          3                 Imagine when you are at your lowest

          4  and your kids wipe their tears and they tell you not

          5  to worry, mom, we're so proud that you had the

          6  courage to leave. What you left was a house, what

          7  you gave us was a home.

          8                 I don't have to imagine because these

          9  are my experiences, a victim of domestic violence.

         10                 When I think about all the victims

         11  who are killed by the people they believed that love

         12  them "til death do them part," I consider myself

         13  very lucky. I'm a survivor.

         14                 I beg the Committee to understand the

         15  importance of this bill, and I thank you for giving

         16  me the opportunity to express and bring you some

         17  insight of a difficult road a victim of domestic

         18  violence must travel, and believe me, I went back

         19  and forth four times, it's not easy.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Thank

         21  you, ladies. Your testimony is extremely moving, I

         22  think it left the entire room kind of full, Rosa.

         23                 Let me first introduce my colleague

         24  that has joined us, Council Member James Davis, who

         25  inadvertently does a  Stop The Violence" forum that
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          2  he does.

          3                 And I think the next one you do,

          4  Council Member Davis, you should make sure you put

          5  in domestic violence as a part of your forum that

          6  you do near the 83rd Precinct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Yes, we have

          8  been doing a "Stop The Violence" program every year

          9  in August. This year it's going to be August 18th at

         10  Brooklyn Academy of Music. And being a retired

         11  police officer, I worked in the 69 Precinct, the 73

         12  Precinct, Warrant Squad, and so on and so forth, and

         13  I was also a police academy instructor, seeing so

         14  many victims on a regular basis.

         15                 I'm not a member of this particular

         16  committee, but I wanted to be here to express to you

         17  that we in the City Council, Speaker Gifford Miller,

         18  all of us, Councilman Yassky, Councilwoman Boyland,

         19  Councilman Bill DeBlasio, we are committed to

         20  protecting victims of domestic violence.

         21                 Too long, probably because of sexism

         22  here in America --

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DAVIS: Probably

         25  because of sexism, domestic violence has gone, you
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          2  know, there has been a lot of urban violence and

          3  other types of violence, maybe because of racism,

          4  who knows, but too long it's gone off the radar

          5  screen. We, in this City Council, are committed to

          6  making sure it's on the radar screen, to protecting

          7  the victims, to getting the batterers the

          8  psychological help that they need, because certainly

          9  they do need help as long as they think that they

         10  have a right to put a hand on someone else, because

         11  they are wrong. And also to get the victims to help,

         12  because unfortunately too many victims feel like

         13  it's their fault. So, we have a lot of work to do to

         14  let the victims know it's not your fault, and we, in

         15  the City Council, are committed to protecting all

         16  victims of domestic violence.

         17                 Thank you so very much, Councilwoman

         18  Tracy Boyland, and I will certainly take heed of

         19  your advice, this year domestic violence is on the

         20  forefront.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: I think

         22  that's extremely important, because sometimes it

         23  inadvertently affects more the children that witness

         24  it, especially our young men. So, I thank you,

         25  Council Member Davis. I know you have a prior
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          2  appointment, but we thank you for being here.

          3                 And, ladies, as you depart, I do want

          4  to leave that I've registered it's being victimized

          5  I say six times: By being a victim of domestic

          6  violence; by the threat of ACS wanting to take your

          7  children because they assume that you're an unfit

          8  mother because of the situation; by sometimes,

          9  Council members, the New York Police Department,

         10  because not having the proper training or needing

         11  the training to be aware of it; by your employers

         12  who don't understand it and productivity may be on

         13  the forefront; by your housing issue, being

         14  eradicated from your home and needing shelter; and

         15  your economic status just being depleted. So, I say

         16  six times being victimized, and I might be missing

         17  something, but that is what we're really trying to

         18  address, and I'm glad that you came today and your

         19  testimony was extremely compelling.

         20                 Thank you, ladies.

         21                 MS. RANDOLPH: I have something else

         22  to add.

         23                 When you go to HRA, again you're

         24  revictimized because you have to sit with another

         25  social worker, and you have to prove to her that,
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          2  you know, you're being battered. And a lot of times

          3  it's a very cavalier attitude - okay, yeah, you're

          4  being battered, you're in a shelter, but you know

          5  what? You still have to be a WEP worker.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Wow.

          7                 MS. RANDOLPH: When you're a WEP

          8  worker, you know, you're out in the City, you're not

          9  protected, the person that's driving you to your web

         10  site, you know, is not instructed to protect you.

         11  So, again you're being revictimized, because not

         12  only do you have to again leave your children, you

         13  have to go out there and risk, you know, the chance

         14  of being seen by your batterer, being seen by any of

         15  his relatives, and, you know, the comfort that they

         16  give you is, you know, we'll put you in a different

         17  borough. Well, how many people associate with other

         18  people who have other family members who live in

         19  different boroughs?

         20                 You know, there needs to be

         21  sensitivity. The social workers, they just need to

         22  be more sensitive of the needs of victims and they

         23  need to hand out more exemptions to work and it

         24  needs to be taken seriously. It needs to be taken

         25  seriously.
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          2                 We just lost another woman yesterday

          3  in the Daily News.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Right.

          5                 MS. RANDOLPH: You know, she was

          6  killed in her apartment and her batterer walked into

          7  the precinct and said, you know, you can find her in

          8  this apartment. So, everyday we see women from all

          9  walks of life, you know, being abused. So, to

         10  empower the women of the City of New York, you know,

         11  pass this bill and make it crystal clear that you

         12  don't need an OP, you don't need anything, you just

         13  need to not be safe and, you know, someone will help

         14  you.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Thank you

         16  very much.

         17                 Thank you, ladies, for your testimony

         18  today.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Council

         20  member, I just want to --

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Oh, I'm

         22  sorry, Council Member.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I don't have

         24  any questions. I mean, I think the testimony of

         25  these women speaks for itself. I just wanted to
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          2  thank them. It is a difficult thing to come and

          3  share your personal experiences in a setting like

          4  this, but I want you to know that it's part of a

          5  very important process of enabling us, and enabling

          6  the government, the City, to try and do something

          7  about it, and I just want to extend my personal

          8  thanks to you for your willingness to come and

          9  participate. It's very important, and I thank you

         10  for it.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON BOYLAND: Thank

         12  you, Council Member.

         13                 Thank you, ladies.

         14                 Our next panelists will be Lynne

         15  Burmeister. Please excuse me, if I crucify your name

         16  please excuse me, from 1199; Deborah Hardwick from

         17  Local 100; and Beth Rasin, from the National

         18  Association of Women Business Owners.

         19                 And if I have mutilated your names,

         20  please say it properly for me so we can repeat it

         21  for the record.

         22                 If you have testimony, please give it

         23  to the Sergeant At Arms.

         24                 Thank you for being patient. This has

         25  been a very filling day and very educational for a
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          2  lot of our members.

          3                 Whoever wishes to start may do so.

          4                 MS. BURMEISTER: Thank you very much,

          5  Council members, for allowing us to testify today.

          6  My name is Lynne Burmeister, and I'm a social

          7  worker, and I'm the program director for the 1199

          8  National Benefit Funds Member Assistance Program.

          9                 1199 SEIU, which is New York's Health

         10  and Human Services Union, covers some 130,000

         11  members in the greater metropolitan area of Long

         12  Island, Upstate and New Jersey, the 1199 National

         13  and Benefit Fund is a Taft Hartley Fund (phonetic)

         14  providing benefits such as the Member Assistance

         15  Program for these workers and their covered family

         16  members.

         17                 Through various referral routes, the

         18  Member Assistance Program sees approximately 100

         19  cases annually whereas domestic violence is the

         20  stated reason for seeking services. However, we know

         21  that many other cases do not present themselves as

         22  directly to us.

         23                 Battered women may self refer or be

         24  referred by delegates, shop stewards, supervisors,

         25  human resource departments of employee health
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          2  services, law enforcement agencies or the courts.

          3                 Batterers may present themselves for

          4  anger management issues or substance abuse

          5  treatment. Or the associated behaviors may have

          6  spilled into the workplace or have been called to

          7  the attention of the judicial system.

          8                 I just want to talk a little bit

          9  about the women in the work environment and then

         10  talk about how labor unions really can address the

         11  issue.

         12                 Working women have increased from 5.3

         13  million in 1900 to 66 million in 2001. And women

         14  make up 42 percent as union membership.

         15                 Three-quarters of battered women were

         16  harassed by their abusive partners or in person or

         17  by telephone while at work, and domestic violence is

         18  the leading form of homicide for women in the

         19  workplace, accounting for 15 percent of these

         20  homicides.

         21                 As was mentioned earlier, domestic

         22  violence is extremely costly to the workplace,

         23  costing three to five-billion dollars annually, and

         24  approximately 24 to 30 percent of domestic violence

         25  victims lost their jobs due in part to missed days
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          2  and impaired performance due to domestic violence.

          3                 As we've known for some time, women

          4  have much to gain from union membership. The actions

          5  of unions in the legislative arena and of protecting

          6  all employees, many laws that benefit everyone would

          7  not have been passed without the efforts of

          8  organized labor, such as workplace health and

          9  safety, anti-discrimination laws and unemployment

         10  compensation benefits.

         11                 Some of labor's proudest moments have

         12  come at those times in American history where unions

         13  took the lead in a fight to improve our society.

         14                 By working with men and women in our

         15  unions to stop domestic violence, we are continuing

         16  this tradition.

         17                 Domestic violence must be seen as

         18  part of the political agenda, because it is family

         19  issue, a public health issue, a workplace issue and

         20  a community issue. Violence against women is a form

         21  of discrimination. It is a violation of one's

         22  rights, and exists in a society in which women are

         23  treated as lesser citizens. Women are paid less,

         24  have fewer opportunities for advancement and more

         25  marginalized in the political system.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            149

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2                 Domestic violence is a factor in

          3  on-the-job problems, including excessive

          4  absenteeism, excessive use of sick leave or poor job

          5  performance.

          6                 When these problems result in

          7  disciplinary action, union delegate shop stewards

          8  must become involved. Our members may also be the

          9  perpetrators of domestic violence.

         10                 Many union members are at risk of

         11  becoming victims of workplace violence as domestic

         12  violence is the genesis of many of these issues: A

         13  worker shot by a violent partner who also shoots

         14  other employees, or a batterer who has just lost

         15  custody of his children shoots the social worker

         16  that testified against him.

         17                 And I just want to talk a little bit

         18  about sample contract language that unions might

         19  introduce when renegotiating contracts.

         20                 There would be ten principles of the

         21  workplace that we would look to have incorporated

         22  related to domestic violence:

         23                 Certainly creating a safe workplace,

         24  which was mandated in 1970 by employers, for

         25  employers needing to provide a safe workplace for
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          2  all workers.

          3                 We need to strive to create a work

          4  environment that is safe from all forms of violence,

          5  which supports victims of domestic violence and

          6  access to services, information and protection.

          7                 We need to take the fullest active

          8  measures to increase safety to employees who request

          9  assistance.

         10                 We need to respect their

         11  confidentiality and only disclose information on a

         12  need-to-know basis regarding their circumstances.

         13                 In all workplaces we need to respect

         14  the authority and autonomy of the adult victim to

         15  direct her or his own life, and I just want to

         16  digress a moment and talk about the discussions

         17  we've had regarding orders of protection and

         18  contacting the police regarding episodes of

         19  violence. Really anyone who works in the field of

         20  domestic violence knows that you have to listen to

         21  the woman and the woman's own perspective as to her

         22  safety. In many cases going for an order of

         23  protection, having it been served on the batterer

         24  will exacerbate the violence and perhaps even lead

         25  to her death. So, often times this is not the
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          2  appropriate course to take, and it's really up to

          3  the woman to decide what route she needs to take  in

          4  these circumstances.

          5                 We also need to acknowledge that

          6  employees who are victims of domestic violence have

          7  the same rights and opportunities and benefits as

          8  all other employees. They should not be disciplined

          9  or terminated excessively because they are a victim

         10  of domestic violence, or because the employer fears

         11  further consequences in the workplace.

         12                 They should not be denied

         13  opportunities for employment benefits or promotions

         14  because of their status.

         15                 We're committed to non-discrimination

         16  against domestic violence in all areas of businesses

         17  and organizations.

         18                 We need to create informed and

         19  productive workplaces. Essentially we need to

         20  provide education on domestic violence to employees

         21  and union members to help management understand the

         22  complexity of the issue, and develop labor and

         23  management committees which can address the issue

         24  and provide safe workplaces for all employees in all

         25  settings.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 MS. HARDWICK: Good afternoon members

          6  of the City Council Committee on General Welfare.

          7  Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to speak

          8  today in support of Intro. No. 101 -- 107, pardon me

          9  -- a local law which would prohibit housing

         10  discrimination against actual or perceived victims

         11  of domestic violence, sex offenses or stalking and

         12  to require reasonable accommodation in employment of

         13  needs of victims of domestic violence, sex offenses

         14  or stalking.

         15                 My name is Deborah Hardwick, and I

         16  have the responsibility of coordinating, along with

         17  Elizabeth Wilson, the family assistance program of

         18  TWU, Local 100.

         19                 I have been a subway conductor for

         20  the past 19 years. Our union represents some 38,000

         21  men and women who move New York, run New York City's

         22  mass transit system, including our striking members

         23  at the Queens private lines.

         24                 We also represent 26,000 retirees who

         25  still depend on the union for benefits and
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          2  assistance.

          3                 This year, Local 100 has spearheaded

          4  a campaign against domestic violence, which

          5  disproportionately affects women and which is not

          6  confined to the home.

          7                 The affects of domestic violence

          8  carry over to the workplace, where injuries and

          9  illnesses prevent abused and harassed people from

         10  doing their jobs to their fullest capacity. Domestic

         11  violence is also committed against persons by their

         12  same sex partners, and by women against men.

         13                 Indeed, according to the National

         14  Domestic Violence Hot Line, a national organization

         15  based in Austin, Texas:

         16                 - Abused (sic) husbands and intimate

         17  partners harass 74 percent of employed battered

         18  women at work, either in person or on the telephone.

         19                 Fifty-six percent are late for work

         20  at least five times a month. Twenty-eight percent

         21  leave early at least five days a month, and 54

         22  percent miss at least three full days of work a

         23  month, and 20 percent lose their jobs.

         24                 - Thirty percent of all women seeking

         25  treatment at emergency rooms are victims of
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          2  battering by a husband or boyfriend.

          3                 - Murder is the leading cause of

          4  on-the-job death among women. In 1992 alone, some 20

          5  percent of the women killed in the workplace were

          6  murdered by a current or former husband or partner.

          7                 - Ninety-four percent of corporate

          8  security directors rank domestic violence as a

          9  high-security problem at their company.

         10                 Here in our own transit system, we

         11  have horrifying cases of domestic violence.

         12                 Just last year, a female bus

         13  operator, Angela McNear, who worked out of the 126th

         14  Street Depot in Upper Manhattan was killed by her

         15  husband at their home.

         16                 An article written about this in our

         17  union's newspaper, the Local 100 Express, is

         18  enclosed. The article shows graphically how victims

         19  of domestic violence are affected at work.

         20                 Angela McNear practically lived out

         21  of her bus depot, because of fear of her husband.

         22  The stress and tension that this created for her can

         23  hardly be understated.

         24                 Problems that arise in the workplace

         25  because of domestic violence are often not
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          2  considered by the employer. A person who is the

          3  victim of domestic violence and needs support or

          4  accommodation from an employer may not have any

          5  recourse if an employer turns a blind eye.

          6                 The enactment of this local law would

          7  send a message to employers that the damaging and

          8  debilitating effects of domestic violence must be

          9  factored into the equation when employee performance

         10  and accommodation is considered.

         11                 This kind of a accommodation should

         12  include, but not be limited to, relocation of the

         13  employee when the employer has credible evidence

         14  that he or she is a victim of domestic violence and

         15  that such relocation could help to resolve the

         16  problem.

         17                 The bottom line for TWU local 100 is

         18  that many of us are afraid to talk about domestic

         19  violence, not only because we are ashamed and

         20  concerned for our privacy, but because we do not

         21  believe we will get a fair hearing from our

         22  employer.

         23                 This law will take away much of the

         24  stigma for raising the issue of domestic violence in

         25  the workplace, allow us to share our views and
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          2  concerns with the reasonable expectation that the

          3  boss will have the obligation to listen.

          4                 I would be happy to answer any

          5  questions you may have.

          6                 Thank you for your time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Ms. Hardwick,

          8  before the next witness, I just want to say I was

          9  very struck, and I really appreciate that you

         10  included in your testimony the story of Ms. McNear,

         11  and it's really, I was reading what you attached,

         12  it's really very shocking. This was a case where,

         13  you know, I'm hoping that we honor someone who we

         14  lost by passing this type of legislation, and I

         15  think you're absolutely right, it's not just the act

         16  of the legislation itself and what it does legally,

         17  it's helping to create an environment where people

         18  see it as normal to act proactively, to think and

         19  intercede and raise the alarm. And in this case, it

         20  obviously appears there were so many opportunities

         21  where she could have been saved before it was too

         22  late, and I think you're absolutely right to see

         23  Council Member Yassky's bill as not just an end unto

         24  itself, but also part of raising a consciousness

         25  that we desperately need to raise.
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          2                 MS. HARDWICK: Thank you, Council

          3  Member DeBlasio.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

          5                 Ms. Rasin.

          6                 MS. RASIN: Good afternoon. My name is

          7  Beth Rasin, and I'm here today in my capacity as

          8  Public Policy Chair for the New York City Chapter of

          9  the National Association of Women Business Owners.

         10                 As the only membership organization

         11  whose sole constituency is women business owners,

         12  NAWBO New York City's mission is to inspire and

         13  empower women business owners and to promote and

         14  support the growth of women-owned businesses.

         15                 As a unified voice, NAWBO New York

         16  City effects social, political, and economic change.

         17                 NAWBO New York City supported the

         18  initial legislation that serves to reduce the

         19  stigmatism facing domestic violence victims in the

         20  workplace, thereby encouraging victims to take the

         21  steps necessary to change their abusive situations.

         22                 In conjunction with that support,

         23  NAWBO New York City emphasized the need to educate

         24  employers as to how the legislation affects their

         25  business and employees.
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          2                 NAWBO New York City supports

          3  legislation proposal 107 as it further clarifies

          4  what the obligations of employers are with respect

          5  to this law, in terms of the need to make reasonable

          6  accommodation.

          7                 Evidence has indicated that such

          8  reasonable accommodation are often small changes in

          9  the workplace that can have a substantive impact on

         10  the victim's ability to change his or her abusive

         11  situation.

         12                 Therefore, it will often be in the

         13  business owner's best interest to effectuate such

         14  changes to assist the employee in continuing to be a

         15  productive contributor to her workplace.

         16                 As NAWBO New York City testified with

         17  respect to the original legislation, this

         18  legislation is not complete without an educational

         19  component. There continues to be a need to educate

         20  employers as to the effects of this legislation on

         21  their businesses and employees.

         22                 NAWBO New York City supports an

         23  outreach effort, including the creation and

         24  distribution of written materials to educate

         25  business owners and employers as to the rights of
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          2  their employees who may be victims of domestic

          3  abuse, stalking or sexual assault, and what steps

          4  employers can take to help employees feel secure to

          5  address the problems so that they can continue to be

          6  effective and productive employees in the workplace.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 You know, sadly enough, we take for

         11  granted that 1199 and TWU will be in the forefront

         12  of anything involving the kind of social changes

         13  that we need, and I want to just stop to say we

         14  shouldn't take that for granted, because, you know,

         15  both unions are on the front line everyday, and I

         16  think in recent months especially we've seen, and in

         17  this Council, both 1199 and TWU play a more active

         18  role than ever before. It's very much for the good

         19  and it gives a lot of heart to those of us who are

         20  trying to strengthen this body. But we don't often

         21  see enough business leaders on these type of issues,

         22  and it's not because they don't feel the same way we

         23  do. I think we have to really work to bring the

         24  business community more into this debate, and I want

         25  to thank you, and I'm a big fan of everything that
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          2  NAWBO is doing on the public policy side, but I also

          3  want to ask you to join with us in helping to bring

          4  more of the business community into this discussion

          5  because for Council Member Yassky's bill to succeed

          6  the way we hope it will, business leaders need not

          7  fear it, they need, in fact, to embrace it, and you

          8  could really play a crucial role in opening the door

          9  on that.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I just wanted

         12  to again thank really all three witnesses for

         13  participating here today. Your comments are

         14  extremely valuable, as the Chairperson says.

         15                 I just have one question for Ms.

         16  Rasin.

         17                 When an employer, you know, a woman

         18  who says to her boss, you know, I need to work, I

         19  need to move my office to the 18th floor instead of

         20  the 15th floor because, you know, I don't know if my

         21  boyfriend is going to come track me down here and I

         22  need to feel safe; an employer who doesn't do that,

         23  do you think it's motivated by cost? I guess what

         24  I'm getting at here is, do you think that what this

         25  bill, to an extent an employer would have an issue
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          2  with this bill, would it be because of cost or

          3  because it's a disruption, you know, it's out of the

          4  ordinary, and people being people don't like to do

          5  things out of the ordinary, they just like to have

          6  their regular, you know, standard operating

          7  procedures? Do you think it's more cost or inertia?

          8                 MS. RASIN: Well, I think it's

          9  probably a combination of factors, depending upon

         10  whom the employer is.

         11                 I think there is an element of

         12  probably not wanting to have to deal with this kind

         13  of an issue. It can be a very intense issue, and,

         14  so, I think, as my fellow panel members could

         15  probably attest, you know, it's something that

         16  people don't want to necessarily even talk about or

         17  get into because it's uncomfortable.

         18                 So, I think there is partially that

         19  issue. I think at times it could be a cost issue.

         20  Certainly when the request came for us to look at

         21  this legislation, you know, we often wear two hats

         22  at NAWBO, we're women and we're very committed to

         23  the kinds of social change that are important for

         24  women, and we're also business owners, so when we

         25  looked at this legislation we also had to factor in
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          2  the possibility that business owners are going to

          3  say, oh, yet another layer of legislative oversight,

          4  another protected class, that I have to consider why

          5  do I need this.

          6                 And I think that the importance of

          7  this legislation is really the educational

          8  component, that it's tied to the kinds of statistics

          9  that were provided about what the cost is in the

         10  workplace of domestic abuse and other kinds of

         11  abuse, and the fact that there can be steps that are

         12  taken that are not significantly costly, and in fact

         13  legislation provides that you don't have to, as an

         14  employer, do anything that would cause undue

         15  hardship for your business.

         16                 That goes a long way towards opening

         17  the door for the employers to see that not only is

         18  this good social policy, but it actually is good

         19  business policy in terms of maintaining a productive

         20  and healthy workplace and maintaining and retaining

         21  employees.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I want to thank

         25  the panel, again. And I want to thank everyone. We
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          2  have one more panel of just two people, so I'd like

          3  to ask everyone who can hang in there, hang in

          4  there, because the information is very, very

          5  valuable.

          6                 We want to call up Wendy Weiser of

          7  NOW Legal Defense Fund, that has been so crucial in

          8  the development of this bill, and Ann Conners of

          9  Sanctuary for Families.

         10                 And while they're coming up, could we

         11  have a sisterly round of applause for our Committee

         12  Counsel who put together this hearing, Jackie

         13  Sherman.

         14                 I have come up with a new phrase

         15  "Sisterhood is powerful." I'm going to patent it. I

         16  just had it as an epiphany right now.

         17                 Okay, who would like to speak first?

         18                 MS. CONNERS: I'll start.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

         20                 MS. CONNERS: My name is Ann Conners,

         21  I'm the Director of Training and Community Outreach

         22  at Sanctuary for Families. I'm actually here

         23  channeling the spirit of Laurel Eisner, who is our

         24  Executive Director, new Executive Director, and she

         25  wanted me to give you her warm good wishes and say
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          2  that she was very sorry she couldn't be here today,

          3  but she had to be out of town, and she very much is

          4  supportive of the work of the Committee and of

          5  Intro. 107.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Before you

          7  continue, please tell Laurel that we're all big fans

          8  of hers, and we're thrilled that she's working in

          9  such a vital capacity.

         10                 MS. CONNERS: Thank you. I'll pass the

         11  message on.

         12                 Sanctuary for Families has been

         13  around since 1984. We're a social service

         14  organization that strives to eliminate domestic

         15  violence, and to help survivors through an

         16  interconnected series of services. We have a

         17  holistic approach, we have a clinical department

         18  that addresses counseling needs, we assist women

         19  with housing, we have a Tier II shelter in the Bronx

         20  with 56 units, and we have a series of crisis

         21  shelters throughout the boroughs that serve women

         22  and their children. We have a legal center that

         23  provides assistance to women in Criminal Court, in

         24  Family Court and in civil matters. We have a job

         25  readiness program and a specialized program for
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          2  children who have witnessed or experienced abuse.

          3                 We're very grateful to be asked to be

          4  here today and we believe that Intro. 107 will

          5  protect survivors of domestic violence, rape and

          6  stalking from discrimination in housing, public

          7  accommodations, and employment. The bill expands

          8  upon the provisions of Local Law 1, which said that

          9  women could not be discriminated against on the job

         10  because they were victims of domestic violence. And

         11  by extending these protections we help more people,

         12  and we also give women a really valuable tool. The

         13  reasonable accommodation standard that this

         14  legislation talks about gives something women can

         15  use when they're discriminated against in the

         16  workplace and they can say, look, it's reasonable

         17  that my phone extension be changed if I'm getting

         18  harassing phone calls at work.

         19                 Steve Banks was talking about, you

         20  know, having these local laws set these standards is

         21  really important.

         22                 When women are getting out of a

         23  crisis situation, the two most crucial things are

         24  employment and housing. There's nothing more central

         25  than that. And victims are devastated when, you
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          2  know, imagine you've been in a crisis shelter and

          3  you go out and you look for your first apartment,

          4  and you're met by a comment from a real estate

          5  broker like, you know, I don't want to rent to you,

          6  trouble will follow trouble.

          7                 Now, you know, you could tell the

          8  real estate broker that, you know, the batterer now

          9  lives in California, now lives in Florida, but the

         10  attitude is there.

         11                 Our housing coordinator can tell you

         12  stories about real estate brokers who have said that

         13  "domestic violence victims throw parties for weeks

         14  at a time, they have orgies." I don't know where our

         15  clients would have money to throw parties for weeks

         16  at a time, but another landlord told one of our

         17  clients who had just moved into a new apartment that

         18  her family, the lights would have to be out by 11:00

         19  at night. So, by addressing housing and employment,

         20  this bill gives women tools that they really need to

         21  move forward and establish an independent life.

         22                 The workplace is crucial because the

         23  batterer knows that the workplace is the place, if a

         24  woman has moved into a confidential shelter

         25  location, and he doesn't know what that location is,
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          2  he still probably knows where she works, and if he

          3  can undermine her ability to stay in her job, he

          4  knows that he can get the power and control cycle

          5  that he had going back again.

          6                 So, you know, the economic

          7  vulnerability that women will experience, you heard

          8  people saying today it propels them to go back to

          9  the abusive situation. They can't escape.

         10                 Now, too often, employers, instead of

         11  helping victims of domestic violence, will turn a

         12  blind eye or will retaliate against them. We've seen

         13  cases in which employees have been fired by seeking

         14  assistance from an employee assistance program, or

         15  they've asked to take time off from work, as you've

         16  heard today, to go to Family Court to pursue an

         17  order of protection, and they've been denied their

         18  job. This leaves them impoverished and demoralized,

         19  revictimized, possibly drives them back to the

         20  batterer.

         21                 I have to also say, we have seen

         22  employers who support an assistance that's been

         23  crucial to our residents and clients. One of our

         24  clients came to work one morning bruised and

         25  bleeding and her employer actually brought her to
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          2  our offices.

          3                 Another of our clients is employed by

          4  one of the large New York City law firms, and she

          5  was being stalked at work, and her employer

          6  responded by stepping up their security. They got

          7  her pro bono legal representation, and really

          8  enabled her to move on with her life.

          9                 I just have to stress that by working

         10  with a victim of domestic violence, employers

         11  benefit as well as the women benefitting. They'll

         12  have lower absenteeism, fewer performance problems

         13  and lower health care costs.

         14                 Domestic violence costs the workplace

         15  approximately 4.2 billion a year in lost work time,

         16  employee medical benefits and legal expenses. And if

         17  we provide a hand of help, instead of a hand of

         18  retaliation, that figure could be much lower.

         19                 The reasonable accommodation standard

         20  in this bill, an adjustment or modification made in

         21  the job or workplace to enable an employee to

         22  successfully perform the position's basic duties,

         23  does not have to be complicated or does not have to

         24  be something that only a large corporation can

         25  address.
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          2                 These accommodations can be very

          3  simple, I mentioned the phone extension, allowing

          4  the time off to appear in court, allowing flex time,

          5  allowing a transfer to another worksite, changing

          6  work hours, providing an escort to a parking lot,

          7  this does not have to be a cost burden for

          8  businesses, it can just be a policy accommodation

          9  and an understanding.

         10                 By requiring employers to make a

         11  reasonable accommodation, while protecting them from

         12  undue hardship, this legislation meets the need of

         13  both the workplace and victims.

         14                 We applaud Council Member Yassky, the

         15  members of this Committee, and the other Council

         16  members who supported this legislation. We urge its

         17  swift passage into law and we offer our goodwill and

         18  resources to further it along.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Last but not

         21  least. And, again, thank you for all you did to help

         22  bring this bill before us.

         23                 MS. WEISER: You're welcome. And thank

         24  you for the opportunity to testify here.

         25                 My name is Wendy Weiser, I'm a staff
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          2  attorney at the NOW Legal Defense and Education

          3  Fund.

          4                 NOW Legal Defense has been working

          5  for more than 30 years to define and defend women's

          6  rights. Our goals include ending violence against

          7  women and eliminating barriers to women's economic

          8  opportunities. The NOW Legal Defense strongly

          9  supports Intro. 107.

         10                 I'm going to focus my remarks on the

         11  Housing Discrimination provisions, but I'd be happy

         12  to answer questions on other provisions, as well.

         13                 Domestic violence, sexual assault and

         14  stalking have a profound impact on survivor's

         15  ability to maintain safe and reliable housing.

         16                 Take, for example, Tiffanie Alvera's

         17  case.

         18                 One morning in 1999, Tiffanie's

         19  husband assaulted her in their apartment. The police

         20  came, arrested her husband, charged him with assault

         21  and jailed him. Meanwhile, Tiffanie was rushed to

         22  the hospital to treat her injuries and then went to

         23  court and obtain a restraining order prohibiting her

         24  husband from coming near her or into their apartment

         25  complex.
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          2                 Two days later she was served with a

          3  24-hour eviction notice stating that she was being

          4  evicted because of the domestic violence incident,

          5  pursuant to the landlord's "one strike against

          6  violence" policy.

          7                 This is not an anomaly. After NOW

          8  Legal Defense and co-counsel represented Tiffanie in

          9  a fair housing case against her landlord in Oregon,

         10  we received numerous calls from survivors, including

         11  many in New York City, whose landlords were

         12  discriminating against them simply because they were

         13  victims of domestic violence, sexual assault or

         14  stalking.

         15                 One victim in New York was threatened

         16  with eviction because her ex-husband, who no longer

         17  lived with her and was subject to a restraining

         18  order, had previously abused her. Another received

         19  an eviction notice after her former boyfriend

         20  entered her apartment building without her

         21  permission and finding her not there scribbled

         22  insulting graffiti on the wall.

         23                 We have also received reports of

         24  landlords refusing to rent from women coming from

         25  domestic violence shelters.
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          2                 In an illustrative study in Iowa, 67

          3  percent of domestic violence service providers

          4  identified "discriminatory practices by landlords"

          5  as a barrier battered women face in their effort to

          6  secure permanent housing.

          7                 It is already extraordinarily

          8  challenging for a victim of domestic violence,

          9  sexual assault or stalking to break away from a

         10  dangerous relationship or to find safety. It is even

         11  more difficult if she fears that taking measures to

         12  make herself safe could cause her landlord to evict

         13  her and her children from their home.

         14                 Because there is currently no

         15  assurance that landlords will not discriminate

         16  against victims, or will agree to reasonable

         17  accommodations that are low or no cost, many victims

         18  are forced to make the terrible choice between

         19  suffering in silence or losing their housing.

         20                 The result is that many victims are

         21  effectively discouraged from reporting their abuse

         22  or taking steps to protect themselves and many

         23  others become homeless.

         24                 In a recent survey that was

         25  referenced by Council Member DeBlasio earlier by the
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          2  U.S. Conference of Mayors, 56 percent of cities

          3  identified domestic violence as a primary cause of

          4  homelessness.

          5                 Existing laws in New York do not

          6  adequately protect these victims, but there is a

          7  growing national recognition of the need to address

          8  housing discrimination against survivors of domestic

          9  violence, sexual assault and stalking.

         10                 For example, Congress recently

         11  directed the Department of Housing and Urban

         12  Development to develop plans to protect domestic

         13  violence victims from discrimination in public

         14  housing. A number of states have passed laws that

         15  protect victims of domestic violence or sexual

         16  assault from housing discrimination in limited

         17  circumstances. Only Rhode Island has passed a law

         18  prohibiting all forms of housing discrimination

         19  against domestic violence victims, and Hawaii has a

         20  similar law pending.

         21                 We applaud the Council's leadership

         22  in enacting Local Law 1 of 2001 and making New York

         23  City the first jurisdiction in the country to

         24  prohibit all forms of employment discrimination

         25  against domestic violence victims. While that was an

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            174

          1  COMMITTEE ON GENERAL WELFARE

          2  important step towards addressing some of the

          3  consequences of violence against women, more needs

          4  to be done to ensure that victims can achieve

          5  security and independence.

          6                 Intro. 107 will put New York City at

          7  the forefront of national efforts to address the

          8  impact of domestic violence, sexual assault and

          9  stalking on victims' employment and housing

         10  security.  We urge its passage. Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Mr. Chair, I

         12  just want to thank you again for doing this. I want

         13  to say, when I first started thinking about this

         14  issue and it came to my attention and I started

         15  working on it, my first question was, you know, how

         16  often does this happen, particularly in New York

         17  City where so much of our housing stock, thank

         18  goodness, is rent regulated still, and people have a

         19  decent amount of tenant protection, but it turns out

         20  that it does. And when you talk with folks who are

         21  in the field working with victims and survivors day

         22  in and day out, they'll tell you story after story,

         23  and it's all the more likely to be somebody, if

         24  somebody is going to flee and has got to get a new

         25  apartment quickly, it's going to be likely to be an
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          2  unregulated apartment, because that's where the

          3  turnover is, and as, sad to say, the state continues

          4  its retreat from rent regulation and ever more of

          5  the housing stock is unregulated, I think we're

          6  going to see more and more of this problem than we

          7  ever have before. Fortunately, in other cities,

          8  where rent protection aren't as strong, they've got

          9  this even worse. We have some measure of protection.

         10                 So, I think this is tremendously

         11  important. I just want to thank both of you,

         12  particularly NOW Legal Defense Fund, who I have

         13  worked with over a number of years, I find you

         14  always to be just an astonishing resource.

         15                 Mr. Chair, I want to thank your staff

         16  member for her extraordinary work on this, even

         17  through this interim juncture in the history of this

         18  bill, I've had the opportunity to work with her

         19  directly on it, and I found her to be

         20  extraordinarily helpful, and I thank the both of you

         21  for that. And I also want to acknowledge the efforts

         22  of Zowie Siegel Lackland (phonetic) of my own

         23  office, who has also worked on this bill. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         25  Council Member.
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          2                 I want to thank everyone who has been

          3  here today. Your presence has helped show how

          4  crucial this issue is. And as we heard on both

          5  pieces of legislation, there will be something of a

          6  fight ahead. So, I want to urge everyone to stay

          7  close to us on this, to certainly let the

          8  Administration know how crucial it is that we pass

          9  both these bills and I look forward to seeing all of

         10  you at the second hearing in the fall.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 (The following written testimony was

         13  read into the record.)

         14

         15

         16  Written Testimony Of:

         17  Nancy Nunziata

         18  Regional Executive Director

         19  HELP USA

         20

         21                 Good afternoon. My name is Nancy

         22  Nunziata, and I am the Brooklyn Regional Executive

         23  Director at HELP USA. HELP USA is one of the largest

         24  providers of transitional housing services to

         25  homeless individuals and families in the City.
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          2                 In addition to its contract with the

          3  Department of Homeless Services to provide

          4  transitional housing for the homeless, HELP also

          5  contracts with the Human Resources Administration to

          6  operate both residential and non-residential

          7  domestic violence programs. Because of this, HELP is

          8  in a unique position to assess the service needs of

          9  domestic violence survivors living within the

         10  homeless system, as well as those living within the

         11  domestic violence shelter system. HELP applauds the

         12  Council's efforts to protect survivors and address

         13  their specialized needs.

         14                 One of the biggest challenges a

         15  survivor must face is whether or not to tell

         16  someone, whether or not to trust someone, and

         17  whether or not to seek help.

         18                 Once they make their decision, it is

         19  the system's responsibility to ensure that services

         20  are readily available and accessible and offered to

         21  survivors within a protected environment.

         22                 If a survivor determines that they

         23  need to seek shelter, then the optimal shelter

         24  setting would be one that has a confidential

         25  location and has the specialized services available
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          2  to address survivors' needs. This is analogous to

          3  the HRA-funded domestic violence shelters.

          4                 What we know, however, is that in the

          5  City, almost 50 percent of those survivors seeking

          6  shelter cannot find a bed within the domestic

          7  violence shelter system, so many of them wind up in

          8  the homeless system.

          9                 The problems encountered once this

         10  happens are two-fold:

         11                 First, the homeless shelters are not

         12  confidential locations and can place a survivor at

         13  serious risk.

         14                 And second,  the specialized services

         15  needed for this population are not available. Among

         16  the services needed for survivors are crisis

         17  intervention, group counseling, and clinical

         18  counseling to address issues of anxiety, depression

         19  and post traumatic stress disorder. For the children

         20  of survivors, their entrance into the shelter system

         21  is equally traumatic and disruptive. Children who

         22  witness their parent being assaulted experience

         23  significant emotional trauma that needs immediate

         24  intervention.

         25                 The service needs of this population
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          2  include early intervention services, play assessment

          3  and play therapy, individual and group counseling,

          4  and specialized therapy services such as art therapy

          5  and dance therapy.

          6                 The homeless system, as is presently

          7  structured, does not allow for the provision of

          8  these much needed services. The shelters do not have

          9  the resources or the trained staff necessary to

         10  carry out these programs.

         11                 While it is very important that the

         12  City remove any barriers to shelter for domestic

         13  violence survivors, it is equally as important that

         14  the City fund the services necessary to help

         15  survivors and their families reclaim their safety

         16  and their lives.

         17                 Thank you.

         18

         19

         20  Written Testimony Of:

         21  Steven Banks

         22  Associate Attorney-in-Chief

         23  The Legal Aid Society

         24  Coordinating Attorney

         25  Homeless Rights Project
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          2  (temporary address because of the World Trade Center

          3  disaster)

          4  166 Montague Street

          5  Brooklyn, New York 11215

          6  718-422-2892

          7

          8  Testimony of Ms. J.:

          9                 My seven-year-old son and I are

         10  homeless and survivors of domestic violence. Ms. J.

         11  is not my real name but the City knows about my

         12  case. I want the City Council to know about my

         13  situation so that other families do not have to go

         14  through what we did.

         15                 I am 43. When I was two, my father

         16  took me away from my mother. When I was eight, he

         17  raped me twice. I ended up in foster care until I

         18  was 18. I have some older children who are grown up

         19  now. The father of my oldest child stabbed me. I

         20  have had other abusive relationships with men.

         21                 For the past four months I have been

         22  seeing a man. This past Saturday morning, he became

         23  angry when I refused to have sex with him in my

         24  apartment. He grabbed me by the neck, shook me, and

         25  threatened me by saying that he would get what he
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          2  wanted. He left my apartment angry and I was scared.

          3  I did not see or hear from him for the rest of

          4  Saturday.

          5                 I live on the first floor of my

          6  building. I woke up at 4 am on Sunday to the noise

          7  of a car outside my window. It was him. He had a gun

          8  and pointed it toward me. He fired it in the air and

          9  drove off. I was terrified. I was not sure what to

         10  do. I had heard about the EAU and on Sunday night I

         11  decided to go there for help.

         12                 When we went outside at about 11

         13  p.m., he was outside and followed us to the train.

         14  He kicked me in the ankle. That hurt me and my ankle

         15  has now swollen up. I was very afraid. I did not

         16  know what would happen next. I tried to be nice and

         17  agreed to get something to eat with him at

         18  McDonald's near the EAU. I told him to go ahead

         19  because my son was walking too slowly to keep up

         20  with him. When I saw him go into McDonald's, my son

         21  and I headed to the EAU down the same street. When

         22  he saw what had happened, he chased us to the EAU

         23  but could not get inside.

         24                 We spent the rest of the night

         25  sleeping the (sic) EAU office. We waited all day
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          2  Monday at the EAU and ended up being bused to a

          3  shelter in the middle of the night for a few hours

          4  of sleep. On Tuesday, the same thing happened. We

          5  waited and waited at the EAU and were taken to an

          6  "overnight" shelter in the middle of Tuesday night.

          7                 While we were at the EAU, I went to

          8  the Criminal Court to see if I could get some help.

          9  A mediator wrote a note to the EAU telling them that

         10  the police were going to arrest my boyfriend.

         11                 At the EAU, I went to the City's

         12  domestic violence office called the "NOVA" office

         13  for help. I showed the note from the Criminal Court

         14  but I was told that I did not need domestic violence

         15  help because this was a one-time incident. I knew

         16  that was wrong so I kept staying at the EAU.

         17                 On Wednesday, some Legal Aid

         18  representatives spoke to a supervisor in the NOVA

         19  office who agreed to look at my case again. After

         20  Legal Aid got involved, the City said that my family

         21  will be able to get shelter and assistance because I

         22  am a domestic violence survivor.

         23                 What happened to us at the EAU is

         24  wrong. We should not have been told that I am not a

         25  survivor of domestic violence. My son and I are
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          2  exhausted from lack of sleep. We're dirty from

          3  wearing the same clothes since Sunday, sleeping at

          4  the EAU, waiting there all day for help, and

          5  bouncing back and forth between the EAU office and

          6  "overnight" shelters. I don't want other families

          7  to have to go through what we have gone through.

          8

          9  Written Testimony of The Legal Aid Society Before

         10  the General Welfare Committee of the New York City

         11  Council - July 25, 2002.

         12

         13                 As you know, the Legal Aid Society is

         14  counsel in the State Court McCain litigation in

         15  which court orders require the City to provide

         16  lawful shelter and services, including permanent

         17  housing, to homeless children and their families.

         18                 We are also Counsel to the Coalition

         19  for the Homeless in the State Court Callahan and

         20  Eldredge litigation in which court orders require

         21  the provision of lawful shelter and services to

         22  homeless single adults.

         23                 The voices from families at the

         24  hearing today provide ample evidence of the critical

         25  need for Int. 120-A to be enacted. Their
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          2  circumstances are not isolated instances. They

          3  represent the range of typical problems that

          4  survivors of domestic violence encounter with they

          5  need emergency shelter.

          6                 The City has designated the Human

          7  Resources Administration as the primary agency to

          8  provide shelter and services to survivors of

          9  domestic violence. HRA operates a toll-free hotline

         10  for survivors, and posters encourage survivors to

         11  call the hot line when they need help to escape

         12  abuse. On a parallel track, the City's Department

         13  Homeless Services (sic) operates the general

         14  municipal shelter system, including the Emergency

         15  Assistance Unit office where families seek placement

         16  in municipal shelters.

         17                 At DHS' EAU office, HRA has a

         18  designated "NOVA" domestic violence program that is

         19  responsible for evaluating the needs of survivors of

         20  domestic violence who seek help at the EAU. Overall,

         21  the City, including both HRA and DHS, is under court

         22  order to provide shelter in instances in which a

         23  family's prior housing is unsafe. The City is also

         24  prohibited from housing families overnight on the

         25  floors and benches of the EAU office. Likewise, the
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          2  City is prohibited from shuttling families back and

          3  forth between the EAU office and multiple

          4  "overnight" shelter placements. A Court-appointed

          5  placement has found that such unstable shelter

          6  placements disrupt education, interfere with

          7  employment, and exacerbate medical problems for

          8  children and adults.

          9                 The lack of sufficient domestic

         10  violence shelter space and the inappropriate

         11  evaluation of the needs of survivors of domestic

         12  violence are significant factors in violations of

         13  court orders at the EAU.

         14                 The City has correctly publicized the

         15  availability of assistance for survivors of domestic

         16  violence. However, when survivors of domestic

         17  violence call HRA's publicized domestic violence

         18  hotline, they are routinely referred to HDS' EAU

         19  because of the lack of HRA domestic violence shelter

         20  space.

         21                 Evidence before the McCain Court

         22  provided by the Domestic Violence Residential

         23  Providers and submitted to the Council at a prior

         24  hearing has shown that annually the HRA-funded

         25  domestic violence hotline receives literally
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          2  thousands of calls from persons seeking safe

          3  shelter.

          4                 HRA -- the City agency charged with

          5  responsibility for sheltering survivors of domestic

          6  violence -- has only enough domestic violence

          7  shelter units to provide safe shelter to several

          8  hundred families who are survivors of domestic

          9  violence each night.

         10                 As a result of this shortage of

         11  domestic violence shelter space, there are currently

         12  several hundred families who HRA has "certified" as

         13  domestic violence survivors occupying space in DHS'

         14  shelter system in facilities that do not provide the

         15  special services in confidential locations that are

         16  necessary for survivors.

         17                 If there were sufficient spaces in

         18  domestic violence shelters for these families, their

         19  spaces in the general municipal shelter system could

         20  be given to families who are currently languishing

         21  all-night on the floors and benches of the EAU

         22  office, or are being bounced back and forth for days

         23  at a time between the EAU office and "overnight"

         24  shelters. Yesterday morning, for example, 46

         25  families with children, including some 90 children,
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          2  were housed overnight on the floors and benches of

          3  the EAU office in violation of court orders and

          4  local law. The City is required to pay civil

          5  contempt fines for these violations.

          6                 Equally troubling, every day HRA

          7  domestic violence staff at the EAU deny that

          8  survivors of domestic violence are in need of

          9  shelter and determine that they can return to

         10  locations known to their abusers. This artificially

         11  deflates the number of "certified" survivors whom

         12  DHS must house because of HRA's failure to make

         13  sufficient domestic violence shelter space

         14  available.

         15                 Despite DHS' residual legal

         16  obligation to refrain from determining that a family

         17  can return to a location that is unsafe, DHS staff

         18  typically follow HRA's lead in these cases.

         19                 As the testimony from families today

         20  attests, we regularly handle cases involving denials

         21  of shelter and services for women who actually have

         22  orders of protection, survivors of non-partner

         23  violence who are denied because the abuser is not a

         24  partner, survivors of violence perpetrated by family

         25  members of abusers who had been incarcerated,
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          2  survivors who had been in a domestic violence

          3  shelter and survivors whose DHS case file indicated

          4  they had been subjected to physical violence but

          5  whose HRA file claimed they had only been verbally

          6  abused.

          7                 In some of these cases, DHS staff has

          8  even made calls to abusers and former partners to

          9  try to get them to rehouse survivors and women

         10  otherwise fleeing from intimate relationships. Even

         11  HRA instructions issued at the behest of the Special

         12  Master have not corrected this egregious conduct in

         13  domestic violence cases.

         14                 Lack of on-site HRA domestic violence

         15  supervision for all shifts at the EAU compounds

         16  these problems. The lack of professional attention

         17  to the needs of domestic violence survivors at the

         18  EAU is further illustrated by the absence of

         19  appropriate, confidential interview areas for HRA

         20  staff at the EAU, the absence of proper signs

         21  indicating the availability of HRA services, and the

         22  requirement that survivors be interviewed in front

         23  of their children.

         24                 For all these reasons, we urge you to

         25  enact Int. 120-A to begin to redress the dangerous
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          2  circumstances that confront survivors of domestic

          3  violence who need emergency shelter.

          4                 Thank you for this opportunity to

          5  testify before you today. We welcome any questions

          6  that you may have.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 4:45 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 25th day of July 2002.
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         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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